

DATE: September 30, 2013

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL: RFP #14-03

SUBJECT: Final Design for Bus Maintenance and Storage Facility

OPTIONAL PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE/TELECONFERENCE

DATE:

October 15, 2013

TIME: 10:00 A.M. EST

LOCATION:

PRTC Large Conference Room 14700 Potomac Mills Road Woodbridge, VA 22192

PROPOSALS DUE

November 4, 2013

DATE:

TIME:

3:00 P.M. EST

SUBMIT TO:

Nick Alexandrow PRTC 14700 Potomac Mills Road Woodbridge, VA 22192

Email: nalexandrow@omniride.com Fax: 703-583-1377

www.PRTCtransit.org

CONTENTS

Section I	Introduction
Section II	General Terms and Conditions
Section III	Scope of Work
Section IV	Proposal Requirements
Section V	Selection of Contractor
Attachment A	References
Attachment B	RFP Submission Form
Attachment C	Insurance Checklist
Attachment D	Certification of Restrictions on Lobbying
Attachment E	Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Statement
Attachment F	Certification of Primary Participants Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Other Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion,
Attachment G	Sample Contract

SECTION I INTRODUCTION

I.1 Purpose of the Request

The Potomac and Rappahannock Transportation Commission (PRTC) intends to contract for professional services for the final design of the bus maintenance and storage facility on the western side of Prince William County in accordance with the Scope of Work listed herein.

This section of the Request for Proposal (RFP) sets forth the general information to all potential Offerors to facilitate preparation of suitable proposals for the services identified in this RFP. Section II sets out the general terms and conditions applicable to this procurement. The scope of work is contained in Section III; proposal submission requirements are addressed in Section IV; while PRTC's process for selecting the best proposal and developing a contract are summarized in Section V. The requirements and process set forth therein shall be binding on all Offerors.

Throughout this RFP the following terms apply:

- "Offeror" and "Prospective Contractor" are used interchangeably and mean vendors responding to this procurement
- "Successful Contractor" means the Offeror awarded a contract to perform the work that is the subject of this procurement
- "PRTC" means the Potomac and Rappahannock Transportation Commission or its agent

I.2 Background Information

PRTC is a suburban public transportation agency located 25 miles south of Washington, DC. The PRTC Transit Center is a 16 year old building and is the agency's only facility. It serves as the administrative, operations, and maintenance complex for both PRTC staff and employees of the bus operations and maintenance contractor, First Transit. The bus fleet consists of 153 vehicles housed in a gated, fenced yard behind the Center. The Transit Center sits between two ramps for I-95 and is bounded by Dale Boulevard on the south. The bus storage yard has been expanded once and cannot be expanded any more.

In 2007, the PRTC's governing board adopted a long-range bus service plan spanning the next twenty-five years ("the plan"). The plan calls for the implementation of a second bus maintenance facility in the western region of PRTC's bus service area because:

1. PRTC's existing bus maintenance facility in Woodbridge, VA cannot be expanded.

2. PRTC-operated bus services in the western region of the service area ("the westerly routes") require long dead-head miles to reach the beginning of the westerly routes, so a second facility in the western region would significantly reduce dead-head mileage and time savings, thereby decreasing costs to operate the service.

The western facility will be "home" to the buses associated with the westerly routes and the buses comprising PRTC's contingency bus fleet. In addition, it will be designed to accommodate future

growth and administrative functions associated with the service and as identified by PRTC. All of the buses would be securely stored, fueled, and some light maintenance will take place at the western facility. Significant repairs would continue to be performed at either the PRTC bus maintenance facility in Woodbridge or at a vendor's location.

A 15.18 acre site has been acquired for the western facility and is located at the southern end of the Patriot Business Center industrial park at the intersection of Balls Ford Road and Doane Drive, bounded by vacant land to the north, a Norfolk Southern Railroad spur track and existing industrial buildings to the east, Prince William Parkway to the west, and an existing storm water detention pond (SWM) and Forest Conservation Area to the south. The SWM facility will serve the planned PRTC facility as well as the rest of the Patriot Business Center.

The proposed facility is anticipated to house a bus maintenance building (45,000 +/- gross square feet), a fleet service building with fueling, fare collection, and fully automated bus wash (17,000 +/- gross square feet), and an administrative and operations building (18,000 +/- gross square feet). It is also anticipated that the western facility will accommodate approximately 23 visitor parking spaces, 181 employee parking spaces, and 118 bus parking spaces. A landscaped buffer adjacent to Prince William Parkway along the entire western side of the site is also anticipated in accordance with the Highway Corridor Overlay District (HCOD) requirement. (See attached Concept Plan that was submitted as part of the Public Facilities Review process forh Prince William County.)

I.3 Scope of Work

PRTC is seeking a team to provide architectural and engineering services needed to complete final design of the PRTC western maintenance facility. The successful Offeror shall provide the means to fulfill the types of requirements listed herein.

I.4 Contract Term

The term for the Contract shall be the length of time necessary to complete the scope of work identified in the Successful Offeror's final, negotiated proposal.

I.5 Decision Not to Respond

Some recipients of this RFP may elect not to respond with a proposal. PRTC is interested in learning whether problems with the solicitation process have discouraged responses, or whether there are other reasons.

Firms electing not to submit a proposal are asked to return the RFP package with a statement describing what factors led to the decision not to submit a proposal.

I.6 Pre-proposal Conference/Teleconference

An optional pre-proposal conference will be held at the date, time, and location shown on the cover page for this procurement. For those that do not wish to attend in person PRTC will provide the option to teleconference. **The call-in number is (605) 562-3000 and the participant code is 212339#.** The Contractor shall be held accountable for all issues identified at this meeting and within the RFP. This meeting will assist PRTC in providing the best information on its requirements and resources.

I.7 Clarification of Terms

In order to ensure an impartial competitive process, questions and private communications with the Prospective Contractors during proposal preparation and the evaluation period will not be accepted. If a Prospective Contractor has questions about the specifications or other solicitation documents, the Prospective Contractor should contact in writing the Project Manager whose name appears on the cover page of this solicitation. Inquiries regarding this RFP will be accepted for up to one week after the pre-proposal meeting (see date, time, and location on the cover) and the inquiries together with the responses shall be distributed to all RFP recipients. Any revisions to the solicitation shall be made only by addendum issued by PRTC.

1.8 Timeline

PRTC anticipates following the timeline show below. Changes, if any, will be communicated to all parties receiving this procurement package and posted on the PRTC web site <u>www.prtctransit.org</u>.

September 30, 2013	RFP Issued
October 15, 2013	Pre-proposal Conference at 10:00 AM
October 25, 2013	Final questions due 12:00 Noon
October 28, 2013	PRTC response to questions
November 4, 2013	Proposals due 3:00PM
November 5 - December 20, 2013	Review proposals, clarify, negotiate
November 22, 2013	Notify Proposers Selected for Interviews
December 2 & 3, 2013	Proposed Interview Dates (also December 6 if needed)
January 2, 2014	Board Meeting Contract Award Recommendation

SECTION II GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

II.1 Proposal and Contract Requirements

This RFP plus the resulting proposal and contract shall be consistent with and governed by the Virginia Public Procurement Act, § 2.2-4300, Va. Code Ann. In the event of an inconsistency between the solicitation and the selection requirements set forth in this RFP versus those set forth in the Virginia Public Procurement Act, the inconsistency shall be resolved by giving precedence to the solicitation and selection requirements of the Virginia Public Procurement Act.

Federal funds will be used for this contract. Accordingly, all applicable federal and state requirements will apply. Prospective Contractors are expected to become familiar with these requirements, and should not submit proposals if unable to execute a contract containing such provisions.

PRTC will provide a contract for execution by the Successful Contractor – a sample contract containing these provisions is included as Attachment G. Successful Contractors will not use their own standard contracts for this engagement. Federal requirements are subject to change; the Successful Contractor is responsible for complying with the most current regulations. The Successful Contractor agrees that the most recent of such Federal requirements will govern the administration of the contract at any particular time during the contract's performance, unless PRTC issues a written determination otherwise.

II.2 Obligation of Prospective Contractor

By submitting a proposal, the Prospective Contractor agrees that it has satisfied itself from a personal investigation of the conditions to be met, that the obligations herein are fully understood, and no claim may be made nor will there be any right to cancellation or relief from the contract because of any misunderstanding or lack of information.

II.3 Qualification of Offerors

The Prospective Contractor must demonstrate to the satisfaction of PRTC that it has the necessary experience, skilled personnel, and financial resources to perform the services required under this solicitation. Qualified contractors shall have substantial recent experience in providing similar services on a scale equal to or greater than what PRTC is requesting.

PRTC may make such reasonable investigations as deemed proper and necessary to determine the competency and financial stability of the Offeror to perform the contract. The Offeror shall furnish to PRTC such information and data for this purpose as may be requested. PRTC reserves the right to inspect the Prospective Contractor's physical plant prior to award to satisfy questions regarding the Prospective Contractor's capabilities.

If, after the investigation, the evidence of competency and financial stability is not satisfactory, in the sole opinion of PRTC, PRTC reserves the right to reject the proposal.

II.4 Additional Information

PRTC reserves the right to ask any Prospective Contractor to clarify its offer.

II.5 Qualification Acceptance Period

The proposal and any modification thereof shall be binding upon the Prospective Contractor for 90 calendar days following the proposal due date. Any proposal for which the Prospective Contractor shortens the acceptance period may be rejected. At the end of that time, the Prospective Contractor may retract its proposal by giving written notice to PRTC.

II.6 Delays in Award

Delays in award of a contract, beyond the anticipated starting date, may result in a change in the contract period indicated in the solicitation. If this situation occurs, PRTC reserves the right to award a contract covering the period equal to or less than the initial term indicated in the solicitation.

II.7 Award for All or Part

Unless otherwise specified, PRTC may, if it is in the best interest of PRTC to do so, award all or part of the proposal to any Prospective Contractor whose proposal is the most responsible and responsive and whose proposal meets the requirements and criteria set forth in the Request for Proposal with respect to the items in question.

II.8 Rejection of Proposals

PRTC expressly reserves the right to reject any or all proposals or any part of a proposal, and to re-solicit the services in question, if such action is deemed to be in PRTC's best interest. PRTC will not compensate Offerors for the cost of proposal preparation whether or not an award is consummated.

II.9 Single Proposal

If a single conforming proposal is received, a price and/or cost analysis of the Proposal shall be made by PRTC. A price analysis is the process of examining and evaluating a prospective price without evaluation of the separate cost element. It should be recognized that a price analysis through comparison to other similar contracts should be based on an established or competitive price of the elements used in the comparison. The comparison shall be made to the cost of similar projects and involve similar specifications.

II.10 Inspection of Proposals

The Virginia Freedom of Information Act, 2.2-3700 et seq. shall govern the release of public records related to the contract. Trade secrets or proprietary information related to procurement may not be subject to public disclosure, provided the requirements at 2.2-4342F VA Code Ann. are met.

II.11 Protest of Award

A Prospective Contractor wishing to protest an award or a decision to award a contract must submit the protest, in writing, to PRTC no later than 10 days after either the decision to award or the award, whichever occurs first. The protest must include the basis for the protest and the relief sought. Within 10 days after receipt of the protest, the Executive Director of PRTC will issue a written decision stating the reasons for the action taken. This decision is final. Further action, by a Prospective Contractor, may be taken by instituting action as provided by the Code of Virginia.

The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) will only review protests regarding the alleged failure of PRTC to have written protest procedures or to follow those procedures. Alleged violations on other grounds are under the jurisdiction of the appropriate state or local administrative or judicial authorities. Any party wishing to file a protest with the FTA should do so not later than five days after a final decision is rendered under the PRTC's protest procedure. Further details regarding this process may be found in the FTA Circular C4220.1F, Chapter VII, Section 1.b.

II.12 Debarment Status

The Commonwealth Transportation Board's Policy of Debarment dated January 1, 1987, shall apply with the exception that the debarment period shall be for a period of up to thirty-six (36) months. By submitting a proposal, the Prospective Contractor certifies that it is not currently debarred from submitting proposals on contracts by any agency of the Commonwealth of Virginia, nor is an agent of any person or entity that is currently debarred from submitting proposals or contracts by any agency of the Commonwealth of virginia, nor is an agent of any person or entity that is currently debarred from submitting proposals or contracts by any agency of the Commonwealth of Virginia.

By submitting this proposal, the Prospective Contractor further certifies that it is not debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participating in contracts with the federal government, and that it will refrain from awarding any subcontract to a debarred or suspended subcontractor. In addition, Successful Contractors agree to comply with the requirements of Executive Orders Nos. 12549 and 12689, "Debarment and Suspension," 31 USC Section §6101 note; and U.S. DOT regulations, "Government Debarment and Suspension (Non-procurement)," within 49 CFR Part 29.

For all contracts the prospective contractor shall submit to PRTC a signed "**Certification of Primary Participants Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Other Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion,**" (Attachment F) and shall require all subcontractors to submit to the prospective contractor and PRTC such signed certifications.

II.13 Anti-Discrimination

By submitting a proposal, the Prospective Contractor certifies to PRTC that it will conform to the provisions of Title VI of the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended; DOT regulations, "Nondiscrimination in Federally-Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation" -- Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act; the Virginia Fair Employment Act of 1975, as amended, where applicable; all requirements of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 20003, and 49 U.S.C. §4332 and any implementing requirements FTA may issue; the provisions of 49 U.S.C. § 5332, "Nondiscrimination in Federal Transit Programs," which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, creed, national origin, sex, or age, and

prohibits discrimination in employment or business opportunity; and Section 2.2-4311 of the Virginia Public Procurement Act.

II.14 Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE)

Each Prospective Contractor is required to submit the **Disadvantaged Business Enterprise** (**DBE**) Form (Attachment E) to the PRTC along with its proposal. This submission does not necessarily require the Prospective Contractor to utilize DBE's in the performance of the contract. Where it is practicable for any portion of the awarded contract to be subcontracted, the contractor is encouraged to offer such business to minority and/or women-owned businesses. All DBE's proposed must be certified by the U.S. DOT, another federal agency using essentially the same definition and ownership and control criteria as DOT, or another recipient of DOT funds, the Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority, Virginia Department of Transportation, or the Metropolitan Washington Airports Authority. If the Prospective Contractor is not itself, nor plans to utilize an authorized DBE, the Prospective Contractor should write on the DBE Form "No DBE's" and submit the form.

The Successful Contractor and its subcontractors agree to ensure that disadvantaged business enterprises as defined in 49 C.F.R. Part 26 have a level playing field on which DBEs can compete fairly and participate fully in contracts and subcontracts financed in whole or in part with federal funds provided under this agreement. In this regard, PRTC and its contractors shall take all necessary and reasonable steps in accordance with 49 C.F.R. Part 26 to ensure that disadvantaged business enterprises have a level playing field to compete for and perform contracts.

The PRTC and its contractors shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin or sex in the award and performance of contracts. The Successful Contractor cannot terminate a DBE subcontractor for convenience and then perform that work with its own forces or its affiliate. Failure by the contractor or his/her subcontractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as PRTC deems appropriate.

The Successful Contractor shall be required to submit a schedule of DBE use and payments made to DBEs on a biannual basis as determined by PRTC. The contractor is required to maintain records and documents of payments to DBE's for three years following the performance of the contract and will make these records available to PRTC upon request.

The Successful Contractor, its agents, employees, assigns or successors, any persons, firms, or agency of whatever nature with whom it may contract or make agreement, in connection with the contract shall cooperate with PRTC in meeting its commitment and goals with regard to the creation of a level playing field of disadvantaged business enterprises. The parties to the contract shall use their best efforts to ensure that disadvantaged business enterprises shall have a level playing field to compete for subcontract work under this contract.

Reference: Federal Regulation Sec. 49 CFR 26.49

II.15 Insurance

A checklist of required insurance coverage is attached and identified as **Insurance Checklist** (Attachment C). Items marked "X" are required to be provided.

PRTC may require that insurance be raised due to change orders to this Contract and/or execution of "Options." At no time shall the insurance coverage be less than required.

The Successful Contractor agrees to include the provisions of the foregoing clause in every subcontract or purchase order so that the provisions shall be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor.

In addition to the terms and provisions set forth above, the Successful Contractor shall be required to provide evidence of the minimum coverage described in Attachment C, Insurance Checklist. No contract shall be finalized and no work shall commence until PRTC's insurance requirements are met. The Successful Contractor shall comply with the insurance requirements set forth in the following numbered paragraphs, plus the coverage and limits indicated on Attachment C, Insurance Checklist. Technical proposals must note any desired exceptions to the insurance coverage, which may include the submission of proposed alternatives.

- 1. The firm shall be responsible for its work and every part thereof, and for all materials, equipment, and property of any and all description used in connection therewith. The firm assumes all risks of direct and indirect damage or injury to any person or property wherever located, resulting from any action, omission, commission, or operation under the contract, or in connection in any way whatsoever with the contracted work.
- 2. The firm shall, during the continuance of all work under the contract provide and agree to maintain the following unless omitted from the attached "Insurance Checklist":
 - a. Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability insurance under the Commonwealth of Virginia statutory requirements, to protect the firm from any liability or damages for any injuries (including death and disability) to any and all of its employees, volunteers, or subcontractors, including any and all liability or damage which may arise by virtue of any statute or law in force within the Commonwealth of Virginia, or which may be hereinafter enacted.
 - b. General Liability insurance in the amount prescribed by PRTC, to protect the Contractor, its subcontractors, and the interest of PRTC, against any and all injuries to third parties, including bodily injury and personal injury, wherever located, resulting from any action or operation under the Contract or in connection with the contracted work. The General Liability insurance shall also include the Broad Form General Liability endorsement, in addition to coverage for explosion, collapse, and underground hazards, where required. Completed Operations Liability coverage shall continue in force for one year after completion of work.
 - c. Automobile Liability insurance, including property damage, covering all owned, nonowned, borrowed, leased, or rented vehicles operated by the Successful Contractor. In addition, all mobile equipment used by the Successful Contractor in connection with the contracted work, shall be insured under either a standard Automobile Liability policy, or a Commercial General Liability policy.
- 3. Liability insurance may be arranged by General Liability and automobile Liability policies for the full limits required, or by a combination of underlying Liability policies for lesser limits with the remaining limits provided by an Excess or Umbrella Liability policy.

- 4. The Successful Contractor agrees to provide insurance issued by companies admitted within the Commonwealth of Virginia, with the Best's Key Rating of at least A: VI.
- 5. The Successful Contractor will provide an original, signed Certificate of Insurance, evidencing such insurance and such endorsements as prescribed herein, and shall have it filed with the PRTC Executive Director before a contract is executed and any work is started.
- 6. The Successful Contractor will secure and maintain all insurance policies of its subcontractors, which shall be made available to PRTC on demand.
- 7. The Successful Contractor will provide on demand, certified copies of all insurance coverage on behalf of the Contract within 10 days of demand by PRTC. These certified copies shall be sent to PRTC from the Contractor's insurance agent or representative.
- 8. No change, cancellation, or non-renewal shall be made in any insurance coverage without a 30 day written notice to the PRTC Executive Director. The Successful Contractor shall furnish a new certificate prior to any change or cancellation date. The failure of the Contractor to deliver a new and valid certificate will result in suspension of all payments until the new certificate is furnished to the PRTC Executive Director.
- 9. Insurance coverage required in these specifications shall be in force throughout the Contract term. Should the Successful Contractor fail to provide acceptable evidence of current insurance within five days of written notice at any time during the Contract term, PRTC shall have the absolute right to terminate the Contract without any further obligation to the Successful Contractor, and the Successful Contractor shall be liable to PRTC for the entire additional cost of procuring the incomplete portion of the Contract at time of termination.
- 10. Compliance by the Successful Contractor and all subcontractors with the foregoing requirements as to carrying insurance shall not relieve the Successful Contractor and all subcontractors of their liabilities and obligations under this hearing or under any other section or provisions of the Contract.
- 11. Contractual and other Liability insurance provided under the Contract shall not contain a supervision, inspection, or services exclusion that would preclude PRTC from supervising and/or inspecting the project as to the end result. The Successful Contractor shall assume all on-the-job responsibilities as to the control of persons directly employed by it and of the subcontractors and any person employed by the subcontractor.
- 12. Nothing contained herein shall be construed as creating any contractual relationship between the subcontractor and PRTC. The Successful Contractor shall be as fully responsible to PRTC for the acts and omissions of the subcontractors and of persons employed by them as it is for acts and omissions of persons directly employed by it.
- 13. Precaution shall be exercised at all times for the protection of persons (including employees) and property.
- 14. The Successful Contractor and all subcontractors and sub-subcontractors shall comply with the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970, Public Law 91-956, as it may apply to the Contract.

- 15. If the Successful Contractor does not meet the specifications of these insurance requirements, alternate insurance coverage, satisfactory to the PRTC Executive Director, may be considered.
- 16. PRTC shall be named an additional insured in the General Liability policies and stated so on the Certificate.

II.16 Prohibition Against the Use of Federal Funds for Lobbying

The Contractor and all subcontractors agree to comply with the provisions of 31 U.S.C. § 1352, which prohibit the use of federal funds for lobbying any official or employee of any federal agency, or member or employee of Congress; and requires the recipient to disclose any lobbying of any official or employee of any federal agency, or member or employee of Congress in connection with federal assistance. In addition, no federal assistance funds shall be used for activities designed to influence Congress or State Legislature on legislation or appropriations, except through proper, official channels. The Contractor shall comply and assure the compliance of subcontractors at any tier with U.S. DOT regulations, "New Restrictions on Lobbying," 49 C.F.R. Part 20.

For contracts of \$100,000 or more, the Contractor shall submit to the PRTC a signed "**Certification of Restrictions on Lobbying**," (Attachment D) and shall require all subcontractors with contracts of \$100,000 or more to submit to the Contractor and the PRTC such signed certifications.

II.17 Protest Policy

PRTC policy and procedure for the administrative resolution of protests is set forth in §3.8 of the Public Procurement Policy and Procedures Manual (Procurement Manual). The Procurement Manual contains rules for the filing and administration of protests. The Contract Administrator shall furnish a copy of §3.8 upon request.

Chapter VII, Sec. 1.b. of Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Circular 4220.1 F addresses protests where federal funds are involved. FTA will only review protests regarding the alleged failure of the grantee to have a written protest procedure; an alleged failure to follow such procedure; or violations of Federal law or regulation. A protestor must exhaust all administrative remedies with the Commission before pursuing a protest with FTA.

SECTION III SCOPE OF WORK

I. <u>Purpose</u>

The Potomac and Rappahannock Transportation Commission (PRTC) is pursuing the design and construction of a second bus maintenance facility in the western region of its service area ("the western facility") located in Prince William County, VA. PRTC will use Federal Transit Administration (FTA) funding for the final design of the prospective facility. In a previous phase of work a needs assessment, site selection, and land acquisition have taken place. PRTC has also received a Categorical Exclusion from FTA pertaining to this project and the project has been deemed consistent with Prince William County's Comprehensive Plan after undergoing a Public Facilities Review (PFR).

The design and engineering team will be responsible for the design of the project from conceptual design through final design, including preparing project plans, specifications and additional documents needed for bidding, site plan approval, as well as providing assistance during construction (responding to RFIs, reviewing shop drawings, required inspections, etc.). There is an option task for post-construction services to develop a Facility Maintenance Plan. The selected team will provide independent cost estimates and quality assurance review. In addition, a Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR) will be brought on during the design phase to assist during the completion of design as well as act as the General Contractor during construction.

Background

The 15.18 acre site for the western facility is located at the southern end of the Patriot Business Park industrial park at the intersection of Balls Ford Road and Doane Drive, bounded by vacant land to the north, a Norfolk Southern Railroad spur track and existing industrial buildings to the east, Prince William Parkway to the west, and an existing storm water detention pond (SWM) and Forest Conservation Area to the south. The SWM facility will serve the planned PRTC facility as well as the rest of the Patriot Business Park.

The proposed facility is anticipated to house a bus maintenance building (45,000 +/- gross square feet), a fleet service building with fueling, fare collection, and fully automated bus wash (17,000 +/- gross square feet), and an administrative and operations building (18,000 +/- gross square feet). It is also anticipated that the western facility will accommodate approximately 23 visitor parking spaces, 181 employee parking spaces, and 118 bus parking spaces. A landscaped buffer adjacent to Prince William Parkway along the entire western side of the site is also anticipated in accordance with the Highway corridor Overlay District (HCOD) requirement. (See attached Concept Plan that was submitted as part of the Public Facilities Review process with Prince William County.)

The western facility has been sized to adequately accommodate the growth in the fleet for the next 30 plus years. To feasibly accommodate this need and control initial capital expenses it is envisioned that the facility and its buildings will need to be designed for phased construction to occur with limited impact on existing operations.

II. <u>Scope of Services</u>

Several products / deliverables are envisioned, including but not necessarily limited to:

- a. Review and verification of all previous work
- b. Final Design Drawings, including Sustainability Standards and Design
- c. Site Plan Approval, Traffic Impact Study and Permitting
- d. 100% Construction Documents
- e. Construction Phase Services
- f. Post-Construction Services Optional

A more complete description of each item follows.

A. <u>Review and Verification of Previous Work</u>

Task 1: Review and verify of all previous work including, but not limited to:

- Space needs study
- Various easement documents that have been granted
- Public Facilities Review Commitment Letter
- Patriot Business Center's Covenants and Restrictions
- Traffic Study for Western Maintenance Facility
- Patriot Business Center Phase II Public Improvement Plans (dated 9/3/13 or most recent version)
- Western Facility Phasing Plan
- 30% Design documents
- Prince William County's Design and Construction Standards Manual (DCSM) and Final Site Plan permitting process
- ALTA Survey
- Other documents deemed pertinent to the final design

The consultant shall become fully acquainted with the above listed documents and will confirm/validate the requirements for the buildings and site program and make suggestions, if warranted, to ensure that all required elements for the facility have been identified.

Task 2: The consultant shall convert all drawings and plans from the preliminary phase of this project into working documents. These drawings will be used to begin the next phase of design.

Deliverables: 30% plans incorporating easements, PFR Commitment letter, Prince William County's DCSM, etc.

B. Final Design, Sustainability Standards and Design

The Consultant shall prepare architectural and engineering plans in conformance with industry standards, particularly with respect to federally funded projects. The Consultant shall determine permits and approvals required for conformity with applicable governmental regulations in anticipation of final design and subsequent construction as a part of the evaluation process.

As the Consultant Team begins finalizing the design of the various building systems they shall investigate and include discussions of alternative systems that may be more energy- or cost – efficient and that could potentially led to development of a LEED certification. The Consultant shall prepare a life-cycle cost analysis for alternate systems taking into account the LEED's Green Building Program.

Task 1: 60% Review The 60% documents will provide descriptions of work involved in, but not limited to, the following disciplines. The plans and drawings that are prepared under this task shall be sufficiently detailed to define the individual spaces from the approved site plan and building layouts.

- Architectural
- Structures and Foundations
- HVAC
- Plumbing
- Electrical
- Fire Protection
- Life Safety Systems
- Lighting
- Landscaping
- Security
- Site and Utilities
- Communications
- Maintenance Equipment

A design review meeting will be held for PRTC review and comment.

Task 2: 90% Review Comments and requested changes on the 60% design plans will be incorporated into the 90% design. In addition to the plans and drawings provided under this task, outline specifications for systems and equipment shall be developed for review by PRTC. The Consultant Team shall prepare a construction cost estimate in conjunction with writing of the outline specifications. The cost estimate shall contain an itemized list of the major methods, materials, and items used in the design and should be presented by specification section using the Construction Specifications Institute (CSI) format.

A design review meeting will be held for PRTC review and comment.

Deliverables: Six copies of 60% and 90% design plans in hard copy and one electronic version in CADD, compatible with AutoCad 2010.

C. Site Plan Approval, Traffic Impact Study, and Permiting

Task 1: The Consultant shall ensure that the site plan documents include all applicable zoning, paving, drainage, wetlands limits, flood plan boundaries, grading, ground water control, roads, curbs, utilities, landscaping, site lighting and security, fencing, associated infrastructure, easements, setbacks, construction phasing for erosion and sediment control and any other required project features.

- The Consultant Team shall apply for and obtain any required Virginia Pollution Discharge Elimination Systems (VPDES) Permits.
- The Consultant Team is responsible for coordinating with PRTC and the utility companies to identify existing utilities, required relocations (if necessary), and utility requirements for the facility
- The Consultant Team will prepare and submit any changes that are needed to off-site or on-site easements.
- The Consultant Team shall submit to obtain approval and secure the required building and site plan permits from VDOT, Prince William County Department of Developmental Services and all other required County agencies (Fire, Water, Electric, etc). Team should be prepared to attend all pre-submission meetings.
- Consultant Team shall respond to all review comments and keep PRTC advised of progress and completion of reviews.

Task 2: A signed and sealed Traffic Impact Analysis must accompany the Site Plan at the time the site plan is submitted to Prince William County.

Deliverables: An approved site plan and other needed permits, as well as, a completed Traffic Impact Analysis.

D. Construction Drawings

Task 1: Any comments made following the 90% submission and will be incorporated in to the construction drawings as well as any comments or changes required by Prince William County during the site plan and permitting process. Construction Drawings should be signed, sealed and stamped by the County. The construction drawings package should included completed specifications, design calculations and diagrams, and a construction phasing schedule.

Deliverables: Five copies of plans in hard copy and disks with plans in CADD Version 10.

E. Construction Phase Services

The design team shall provide the following services to assist with the construction and occupancy of the western facility.

Task 1: Shop Drawing review

- Task 2: Pre-Construction and Construction Meetings and Consultation
- Task 3: Requests for Information
- Task 4: Construction Testing & Inspection
- **Task 5:** Equipment Testing and Startup

Task 6: Final Inspections and Certificate of Occupancy

Deliverables: Logs of shop drawing reviews, requests for information, construction meeting minutes, field observation reports, inspection testing reports, preliminary and final punch list, and Certificate of Occupancy.

F. Optional – Post Construction Services

Task 1: Facility Maintenance Plan - The design team shall prepare a preventive maintenance plan for the western facility that identifies the maintenance requirements of all building components, systems and equipment that needs to be maintained on a regular basis and the frequency of that required maintenance. Maintenance Plan should include the following

- Identify all building components, systems and equipment requiring maintenance
- Review all available resource date, including the O&M manuals, installation manuals, shop drawings, warranty information, and product data
- Identify all periodic inspection and maintenance requirements for each item
- Develop a detailed facility maintenance standards and procedures, which shall clearly define maintenance personnel responsibilities
- Provide all of the above described items in an organized facility maintenance system manual
- Provide onsite startup assistance and training to familiarized maintenance personnel with the system.

Deliverables: Five hard copies of facilities maintenance plan and one copy on disk format to be determined.

SECTION IV PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS

All information requested and the requirements of this RFP must be supplied in writing in order for PRTC to consider the proposal complete.

IV.1 Effect of Proposal Submission

Submission of a proposal shall constitute agreement to include the provisions contained in this RFP and/or in the Offeror's proposal in any contract negotiated between the parties unless an exception or clarification specifically refers to the applicable objective or specification included in the Scope of Work.

By submitting a proposal, the Offeror also agrees that it is satisfied from its own investigation of the conditions and requirements to be met, that it fully understands their obligation, and that it will not make any claim for or have the right to cancellation of or relief from the Contract because of any misunderstanding or lack of information.

IV.2 Due Date and Copies Returned

Responses are due no later than the date and time shown on the cover page of this procurement document. Proposals received by PRTC after the date, time and location prescribed shall not be considered for contract award and shall be returned unopened to the Offeror.

IV.3 RFP Submission

All Offerors shall submit one original and four copies of the proposal. Because this is a "professional services" procurement, technical merit is evaluated without regard to price (see Section V.3, Basis for Award).

Technical Proposals – Parts 1 – 5, as identified in Section IV.5.

The submission shall be clearly labeled "**Final Design for Bus Maintenance and Storage Facility, RFP No. 14-03**." Offerors should deliver the sealed proposal to the Project Manager at the mailing address listed on the cover page of this procurement document.

IV.4 Confidentiality

In addition to the terms and provisions set forth in Section II.10 of the RFP and Sections II.23, II.25 and II.26 of the Contract, PRTC shall not discuss or disclose proposals or their proposed cost with competing firms during the selection process or otherwise disclose them to the public except as may be required by the State Freedom of Information Acts (FOIA) and other relevant law (i.e., Virginia's Public Procurement Act). Proprietary information, which is submitted, must be identified as such at the time of submission, and shall not be disclosed to the public or competing Offerors at any point in time, provided the requirements at 2.2-4342F VA Code Ann. are met. Proposals not in compliance with 2.2-4342 F will be subject to disclosure.

No responsibility shall be attached to the PRTC Executive Director or his representative(s) for the premature opening or disclosure of a proposal not properly addressed and identified.

IV.5 Proposal Format Instructions

PRTC will follow the evaluation process and selection criteria described in Section V of this RFP. In order to enhance this process and provide each firm an equal opportunity for consideration, adherence to a standardized proposal format is required.

The minimum requirements for a proposal to be considered fully responsive are outlined below. This information should be submitted in the format outline below with tabs.

- Part 1: Cover Letter
- Part 2: Approach and Work Plan
- Part 3: Contractor Experience and References
- Part 4: Qualifications of Key Personnel
- Part 5: Required Forms

PRTC is not responsible for failure to locate, consider, and evaluate qualification factors presented outside of this format. The following paragraphs provide guidelines to each Offeror for information to include in the proposal.

Part 1: Cover Letter

The cover letter should provide the following information.

- Identification of the proposer(s), including name, address and telephone number of the appropriate contact person at each firm.
- Proposed working relationship among proposing firms, i.e., prime-subcontractor, if applicable.
- Statement of the Scope describe in concise terms your understanding of the scope of work presented by the RFP.
- Signature of a person authorized to bind the proposing firm to the terms of the proposal.

Part 2: Approach and Work Plan

This part should confirm that the Offeror understands this RFP and present a complete plan for accomplishing the work.

This section should describe the recommended approach and work plan regarding the assistance to be provided. The Offeror should clearly distinguish tasks that the Offeror will undertake as distinguished from those which are the responsibility of PRTC. Absence of this distinction will mean the Offeror is fully assuming responsibility for all tasks.

The proposal must address in depth the Offeror's plans to meet the requirements of each of the tasks and activities outlined in the "Scope of Services" of this RFP. The work plan must discuss the staffing level(s) required to compete each task, as well as the relative effort that each member of the proposed project team will devote to the project. The work plan also must include a task-by-task schedule of the time required to complete the project (timeline with deliverables indicated).

The proposal should also address the quality assurance/quality control and oversight processes to ensure the work performance is within budget, scope and timeline, but also that comments and changes are incorporated into the work. Illustrations of procedures employed on similar projects that worked well should be included in the narrative.

Work plan steps should be supported by the proposed hours the Offeror agrees to commit to assist PRTC plus the hours and resources required by PRTC's staff to assist. The Offeror should clearly specify who has primary responsibility for each work plan element: the Offeror or PRTC's staff.

Part 3: Contractor Experience and References

In this part, the Offeror will present the experience of the firm(s) and references that best demonstrate why it should be considered for this project.

A. Experience

- Summarize the organizational structure and size of the company, plus its date of organization, and current principal place of business.
- Outline and briefly discuss the scope of services provided and the approximate percentage of the total business devoted to the type of services requested in this RFP.
- Describe the Offeror's experience with similar projects.
- Indicate whether or not the company has an organized practice addressing the requested scope of services, area covered, who formally heads that practice, and where that person is located.
- Describe any local office(s) that will service PRTC, including size, services, area covered, and principal contact person.
- Specify in a similar manner with references, etc., the qualifications of any subcontractors to be used in this proposed project.

B. <u>References</u>

• Using the form labeled "Attachment A References," provide a list of five engagements that are similar in service type, size, scope and complexity in the past five years.

• Also use Attachment A to provide three references for any proposed subcontractor. Be sure to clearly note which forms are for the Offeror and which pertain to subcontractors.

Part 4: Qualifications of Key Personnel

- Designate a Project Manager.
- Provide evidence that the Project Manager has had at least five (5) years of experience of managing similar projects. It is desirable that the Project Manager be a licensed Virginia Engineer or Architect.
- Include the organization, functional discipline, and responsibilities of project team members. Provide an organizational chart that identifies each team member and their responsibilities.
- Provide resumes for each of the proposed key team members.
- Clearly state if the Offeror is proposing to subcontract any of the work herein and, if so, provide the same information for each subcontractor.

Part 5: Required Forms

The following forms must be included with the Offeror's proposal:

- Attachment B RFP Submission Form
- Attachment C Insurance Checklist
- Attachment D Certificate of Restrictions on Lobbying
- Attachment E Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Statement
- Attachment F Certification of Primary Participants Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Other Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion

The RFP Submission Form must bear an original signature and may be included with a letter of transmittal. Failure by the Offeror to include this RFP Submission Form with its proposal may be cause for rejection of the proposal. A brief explanation of the certifications on the form follows.

• Ownership

PRTC requires all firms submitting proposals to indicate their form of organization and current principal place of business. In addition, proposals must list the names and addresses of any ownership interest of 3% or more in the firm(s) responding to this RFP.

• Conflicts of Interest

In addition to the terms and provisions set forth in Section II.28 of the Contract this solicitation is subject to the provisions of §§ 2.2-3100, *et seq.*, Va. Code Ann., the "Virginia Conflicts of Interest Act" no member of the Potomac and Rappahannock Transportation Commission, or any other officer or employee of PRTC, or the spouse or any other relative who resides in the same household as any of the foregoing, may be a contractor or subcontractor in connection with any bid/proposal, or have a personal interest therein as defined by § 2.2-3101, Va. Code Ann.

• Collusion

All proposals submitted must be made without prior understanding, agreement, or connection with any corporation, partnership, firm, or person submitting a proposal for the same requirements, without collusion or fraud. Collusive bidding is a violation of State and Federal law and can result in fines, prison sentences, and civil damage awards.

SECTION V SELECTION OF CONTRACTOR

V.1 Approving Authority

The Approving Authority for this RFP is the PRTC Board and the authority to approve is contingent upon appropriation of funds for the total amount of the Contract within each fiscal year.

V.2 Selection Committee

For this RFP, a Technical Evaluation Team (TET) will review and evaluate proposals. In turn, the TET will make its recommendation for selection of a firm to the Approving Authority.

V.3 Basis for Award

The TET will base its recommendation on the "Technical Evaluation Criteria" set forth in this RFP. The Team shall conduct an evaluation based on information set forth in the proposal, past performance, and references of each firm.

Proposals should be submitted initially on the most complete and favorable terms from a technical standpoint. Should proposals require clarification and/or supplementary information, firms should be prepared to submit such clarification and/or supplementary information, in a timely manner, when so requested. PRTC may also arrange for discussion with firms submitting proposals, if required, for the purpose of obtaining additional information or clarification.

Based on the results of the preliminary evaluation and at the PRTC Technical Evaluation Team's sole discretion, the highest rated firms <u>may</u> be invited to make oral presentations. Such presentations may include, but are not necessarily limited to: explanations of the proposed approach; work plan; and qualifications of the firm.

The PRTC may also make reasonable investigations, as it deems proper and necessary to determine the ability of the firm to perform the work.

The Committee will then conduct a final evaluation of the firms.

The award shall be made to the responsive and responsible Offeror whose proposal conforms to the solicitation and achieves the highest score. Because this is Professional Services procurement, only technical merit (those criteria in Section V.4) will be considered in determining rank order of the technical proposals.

V.4 Technical Evaluation Criteria

Criteria to be used by the committee and corresponding technical evaluation weighting are:

1.	Approach and Work-plan	25%
2.	Contractor/Team Experience and References	30%

3.	Qualifications of Key Personnel	35%
4.	Team Experience with Construction Manager at Risk Project Delivery Method	10%

V.5 Notification of Award

All Offerors will be notified in writing, electronically or otherwise, as to selection of Contractor for this project.

V.6 Prime Contractor

The selected Offeror shall be required to assume full responsibility for the complete effort as required by this RFP whether work is performed by the Offeror or subcontractors. The selected Offeror is to be the sole point of contact with regard to all contractual responsibilities.

PRTC also reserves the right to contract with more than one firm for specific aspects of the RFP if that is in PRTC's best interest.

V.7 Contract Development

Offerors are reminded that the proposal will form the basis of the contract negotiations phase between PRTC and the selected Offeror. Accordingly, the proposal should be written in a concise, forthright manner, and respond in the manner described in Section IV of the RFP. PRTC reserves the right to incorporate all statements and claims made in the proposal (including any attachments) in the final contract.

Once an Offeror is tentatively selected based on the "Technical Evaluation Criteria," PRTC reserves the right to negotiate further with the selected Offeror to achieve a binding price and agreement on contract terms.

If a satisfactorily proposed contract cannot be negotiated with the highest technically ranked Offeror, negotiations shall be formally terminated. Negotiations shall then be undertaken with the Offeror ranked second highest, and so on. The Selection Committee will make appropriate recommendations to the Approving Authority prior to actual award of the Contract.

All negotiated prices shall remain valid for a minimum period of 90 calendar days from date of offer or until such time a contract is signed, unless extended in writing.

This RFP and the Successful Offeror's proposal will be incorporated by reference or directly into the final Contract.

V.8 Contingency of the Contract

Award of the contract to the selected firm is contingent upon:

- The budget and appropriation of funds (if necessary); and
- The successful negotiation of contractual terms agreeable to both parties

Failure to achieve the foregoing will result in no award at this time.

V.9 Standard Contract for Services

PRTC will enter into its "Standard Contract for Services" in a form substantially as attached hereto.

V.10 Type of Contract

PRTC expects to award a firm fixed price contract.

V.11 Notice to Proceed

A Notice to Proceed (NTP) shall be issued by the PRTC Executive Director or designee following execution of the Contract and receipt by PRTC of all required documents. Services are not to begin until receipt of the NTP by the Contractor.

V.12 Acceptance, Invoicing, Billing Format, and Payment

Tasks and all reports shall be conducted and completed in accordance with recognized and customarily accepted industry practices, and shall be considered complete when the products are approved as acceptable by the PRTC Contract Administrator.

The Contractor shall submit invoices listing the services performed and completed to PRTC's Project Manager. With advance PRTC approval progress payments may be authorized based on a set of milestones for work not specifically resulting in deliverable products. Invoices should cite the Purchase Order number, Contract number, and date of services or delivery of an end product.

PRTC will make payment to the firm, net 30 days or in accordance with discount terms, if offered, after receipt of an acceptable invoice and satisfactory completion of the requested services.

ATTACHMENT A REFERENCES

Describe previous work experience for five engagements that are similar in service type, size, scope, and/or complexity in the past five years. Information shall include, but is not limited to, the following.

Client Company's Name				
Contact Name:	Talaphana Number			
Contact Name:				
Type of business, if not public transportation				
Detailed scope of services				
Beginning and ending dates				
Contract value \$				
Other information:				

or

ATTACHMENT B RFP SUBMISSION FORM

Proposals Due	Name of RFP RFP Number			
SECTION I - COMPANY IDENTIFICAT		IERSHIP DISCLOSUR	E	
Company Address		Contact Person Title		
Remittance Address		Telephone No FAX No Email		
Indicate Which Apply: CorporationPartnershipS Disadvantaged Business Enterpris	•			
Organized under the laws of the State of Principal place of business at			years	
Annual grossLess than\$500,00 Receipts: \$500,000 to \$1,000,0				
Following are the names and addresse more in the company: (Attach more sh	•	•	iterest of 3% o	

SECTION II - CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

This solicitation is subject to the provisions of §§ 2.2-3100, *et seq.*, Va. Code Ann., the "State and Local Government Conflicts of Interest Act."

The Offeror **is** [] **is not** [] aware of any information bearing on the existence of any potential organizational conflict of interest.

SECTION III - COLLUSION

I certify that this offer is made without prior understanding, agreement, or in connection with any corporation, firm, or person submitting an offer for the same services, materials, or equipment, and is in all respects fair and without collusion or fraud. I understand collusive bidding is a violation of the State and Federal law and result in fines, prison sentences, and civil damage awards.

I hereby certify that the responses to the above representations, certifications, and other statements are accurate and complete. I agree to abide by all conditions of this Invitation for Bid and certify that I am authorized to sign for the Bidder.

ATTACHMENT B (continued) **RFP SUBMISSION FORM**

Signature _____ Date _____

Name (Printed) _____ Title _____

BIDDER MUST RETURN THIS COMPLETED FORM WITH BID SUBMISSION

Following are the names and addresses of all persons having an ownership interest of 3% or more in the company: (Attach more sheets if necessary)

ATTACHMENT C INSURANCE CHECKLIST

Items marked "X" are required to be provided if award is made to your firm. Contractor's Insurance Agent shall mark a "check" ("Yes" or "No") as to availability of insurance. Note: If you have answered "No" to any of the requirements, provide written explanation below Offeror and Insurance Agent Statement on the following page.

COVERAGE REQUIRED

LIMITS (FIGURES DENOTE MINIMUM)

	N 1 - #	.				
Yes	No*	Required				
		Х	1.	Workers' Compensation	1.	Statutory Limits of the
				and Employers' Liability;		Commonwealth of Virginia:
		Х		Admitted in Virginia		Yes
		Х		Employer's Liability		\$100,000
				All Sates Endorsement		
				USL&H Endorsement		
				Voluntary Compensation		
		Х	2.	General Liability	2.	\$1,000,000 Combined
				Products		Single Limit Bodily
		Х		Complete Operations		Injury and Property
		X		Contractual Liability		Damage Each Occurrence
		X		Personal Injury		Damage Lach Occurrence
		X				
		~		Independent Contractors		
		N	•	XCU Prop. Damage Excl.	•	
		X	3.	Automobile Liability	3.	\$1,000,000 Combined
		Х		Owned, Hired & Rented		Single Limit Bodily
				Motor Carrier Act End.		Injury and Property
						Damage Each Occurrence
		Х	4.	Professional Errors and	4.	\$1,000,000 Per Claim &
				Omissions		Aggregate Limit
			5.	Garage Liability	5.	
			6.	Garage keepers' Legal Liability	6.	
			7.	Fire Legal Liability	7.	
			8.	Other Insurance:	8.	
		Х	9.	PRTC named as additional	9.	
			0.	insured on General Liability	•••	
				(This coverage is primary to all		
				other coverage's PRTC may		
				possess)		
		Х	10		10.	
		~	10.	30 day cancellation notice	10.	
		X		required		
		Х	11.	Best's Guide Rating - A:VI or	11.	
		Ň		Better, or Equivalent		
		Х	12.	The Certificate must state	12.	
				Bid/RFP # and Bid/RFP Title		
		Х	13.	Umbrella Liability	13.	\$1,000,000 Limit per
						Occurrence

ATTACHMENT C (continued) INSURANCE CHECKLIST

OFFEROR AND INSURANCE AGENT STATEMENT

We understand the insurance requirements of these specifications and will comply in full if awarded this Contract.

OFFEROR

INSURANCE AGENCY

SIGNATURE

SIGNATURE

ATTACHMENT D **CERTIFICATION OF RESTRICTIONS ON LOBBYING**

I, _____

and title of Firm/Contractor Official)

of ______ that: (name of Firm/Contractor)

(1) No federal appropriated funds have been paid or shall be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an office or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of a federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement. No federal assistance funds shall be used for activities designed to influence Congress or State Legislature on legislation or appropriations, except through proper, official channels.

If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or shall be paid to (2) any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an office or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying", in accordance with its instructions.

The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the (3) award documents for all sub awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contract under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352. Title 31. U.S. Code, Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

Executed this	day of	
---------------	--------	--

By: _____ Title: _____

ATTACHMENT E DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE STATEMENT

The Commission commits itself to an active effort to involve Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) in contracting opportunities, to increase competition, and to broaden the base of support for public transit. The PRTC has established a goal of 5.6% for the utilization of DBEs. To ensure that DBEs have a level playing field to compete for contract and subcontract work, we ask that you describe below, how your organization will assist the Commission with its commitment toward achieving our 5.6% goal.

Complete the following form if you plan to utilize Disadvantaged Business Enterprise subcontractors during the contract period (One form must be completed for each DBE).

Submit proof of DBE contractor certification, if applicable.

ATTACHMENT E (continued) DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE STATEMENT

SCHEDULE OF DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) PARTICIPATION

(One form must be completed for each DBE)

Name of Offeror	
Project Name	
Name of Certified DBE Contractor	
Contact Name, Title	
Address	
Phone Number F	ax Number
Age of Firm: years	
Annual GrossLess than\$500,000 Receipts: \$500,000 \$1,000,000	\$1,000,000\$4,000,000 more than \$4,000,000 \$7,000,000 \$7,000,000
Certified as a DBE by	Date
Type of Product/Services Provided/SOW Tas	ks and Contract Items to be Provided by DBE
Projected Dates for Work Commencement/Co	ompletion
Contract Amount	

The undersigned will enter into a formal agreement with the above DBE Contractors for work listed in the schedule conditioned upon execution of a contract.

Offeror

Date

ATTACHMENT F CERTIFICATION OF PRIMARY PARTICIPANTS REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER INELIGIBILITY AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION

(The Contractor)

or

(Subcontractor)

certifies, by submission of this bid/proposal, that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by an federal department or agency.

(If the Prime Contractor or Subcontractor is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such participant shall attach an explanation to this bid/offer).

(PrimeContractor)

or

(Subcontractor)

certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of the contents of the statements submitted on or with this certification and understands that the provisions of 31 U.S.C. Sections 3801 ET. SEQ. are applicable thereto.

Signature of Authorized Official

Name (Printed)

Title of Authorized Official

Date

(This form must be completed by the Contractor and Subcontractors)

ATTACHMENT G SAMPLE CONTRACT

POTOMAC AND RAPPAHANNOCK TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION Services Contract



CONTRACT: #14-03

SUBJECT:

Between:

Potomac and Rappahannock Transportation Commission 14700 Potomac Mills Road Woodbridge, VA 22192

And the Contractor:

This Contract is entered into this _____ day of _____, ____, by and between the Potomac and Rappahannock Transportation Commission, or its authorized agents, and the Contractor identified above for services identified herein, on the following terms and conditions. This Contract is prepared in accordance with the Virginia Public Procurement Act, § 2.2-4300, Va. Code Ann., which is incorporated herein by reference.

SECTION I

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

I.1 Definitions

"Potomac and Rappahannock Transportation Commission" or "PRTC" shall mean the Potomac and Rappahannock Transportation Commission authorized by the Virginia Public Procurement Act or other law to enter into Contracts.

The "Contract Administrator" assigned to administer this Contract for PRTC is Betsy Massie, Director of Grants and Project Management.

"Contractor" shall mean:

whose authorized representative is ______, _____, who is responsible for the performance obligation of the Contractor under this Contract.

I.2 Contract Term

The term for this Contract shall begin with the execution of this Contract and shall continue as stated in Section 1.4 of the RFP.

I.3 Incorporation of Documents

In addition to the terms and conditions contained in Section I.4 of this Contract, the following documents are hereby incorporated by reference into this Contract:

- 1. PRTC's Solicitation # 14-03 entitled "Final Design for Bus Maintenance and Storage Facility" and dated September 30, 2013.
- 2. Contractor's Solicitation Response dated _____

1.4 Precedence of Terms

In the event of an inconsistency between the Request for Proposals, the Contract Terms and Conditions, other included documents, and the state procurement law, the inconsistency shall be resolved by the following order of precedence:

- 1. Federal Transit Administration Master Agreement (dated October 1, 2012, and amendments thereto) and FTA Circular 4220.1F, dated November 1, 2008, as amended
- 2. Virginia's Public Procurement Act, as amended
- 3. This executed Contract #14-03

- 4. Request for Proposal (RFP) #14-03, including addenda
- 5. Contractor's Response

I.5 Provision of Services

The Contractor hereby agrees to provide professional services needed to complete final engineering and design for PRTC's western facility and as further outlined in RFP #14-03, Final Design for Bus Maintenance and Storage Facility.

I.6 Contract Amount

In addition to the terms and provisions contained in Sections II.5 and II.6 of this Contract, and in return for the services identified above and subject to the "Non-Appropriation of Funds" clause herein, PRTC certifies that sufficient funds are budgeted and appropriated and shall compensate the Contractor as described in Section V.10 of the RFP.

I.7 Method of Payment

Payment shall be made as described in Section V.12 of the RFP, Acceptance, Invoicing, Billing Format, and Payment.

I.8 Time of the Essence and Completion

Time shall be of the essence to this Contract, except where it is herein specifically provided to the contrary.

I.9 Key Personnel

Certain, skilled, experienced, professional and/or technical personnel are essential for successful accomplishment of the work to be performed under the contract. These are defined as "key personnel" and are those persons whose resumes were submitted as part of the technical bid/proposal for evaluation. During the period of performance, the Contractor shall make no substitutions of key personnel except in accordance with this clause and unless approved in writing by the Contract Administrator.

The Contractor shall assign to this Contract the following key personnel:

The Contractor shall provide a detailed explanation of the circumstances necessitating the proposed substitutions, complete résumés for the proposed substitutes, and any additional information requested by the Contract Administrator. Proposed substitutes should have

comparable qualifications to those of the persons being replaced. The Contract Administrator will notify the Contractor within 15 calendar days after receipt of all required information of the decision on substitutions. This clause shall be modified to reflect any approved changes of key personnel.

 The Contractor understands that during the first 30 days of the contract performance period, no personnel substitutions shall be permitted unless these substitutions are unavoidable because of sudden illness, death or termination of employment. In any of these events, the Contractor shall promptly notify PRTC's Contract Administrator and provide the information described in paragraph b) below.

After the initial 30 day period, the Contractor must submit to the PRTC Contract Administrator all proposed substitutions, in writing, at least 15 days in advance and provide the information required by paragraph b) below.

- 2. Any request for substitution must include a detailed explanation of the circumstances necessitating the proposed substitution, a resume for the proposed substitute, and any other information requested by the PRTC Contract Administrator. Any proposed substitute must have qualifications equal to or superior to the qualifications of the incumbent. PRTC will evaluate such requests and promptly notify the Contractor in writing of its approval or disapproval.
- 3. The provisions of this clause shall be applicable to any subcontract, which may be entered into.
- 4. In the event that any of the identified key personnel cease to perform under the contract and the substitute is disapproved, the Contract may be immediately terminated in accordance with the Termination for Default clause of the Contract.

I.10 PRTC Contract Management

- <u>Contract Administrator</u> Matters relating to prices, terms and conditions, period of performance, quantities to be supplied, delivery schedule and financial adjustments shall be handled through the Contract Administrator. The Contract Administrator for this Contract will be Betsy Massie, PRTC's Director of Grants and Project Management.
- 2. <u>Project Manager</u> The Contract Administrator has designated Nick Alexandrow as Project Manager (PM) to assist in monitoring the work under the contract.
- 3. <u>Contracting Officer</u> PRTC's Executive Director is the only individual who can legally commit or obligate the PRTC for the expenditure of federal/public funds. The technical administration of the contract shall not be construed to authorize the revision of the terms and conditions of the contract. Any such revision shall be authorized in writing only by the Contracting Officer.

SECTION II GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

II.1 Governing Law and Choice of Forum

This contract and any disputes hereunder shall be governed by the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia. It is further agreed that all disputes and matters whatsoever arising under, in connection with or incident to this Contract, shall be litigated, if at all, in and before a state Court located in the County of Prince William in the Commonwealth of Virginia or a federal Court located in the Eastern District of Virginia, and any appropriate appellate Court thereof, to the exclusion of the courts of any other state, territory, county, or other jurisdiction.

II.2 Incorporation of Federal Transit Administration Terms

These terms include, in part, certain Standard Terms and Conditions required by the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT), whether or not expressly set forth in the contract provisions. All contractual provisions required by DOT, as set forth in FTA Circular 4220.1F, dated November 1, 2012, as amended, are hereby incorporated by reference. Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, all FTA mandated terms shall be deemed to control in the event of a conflict with other provisions contained in this Agreement. The Contractor shall not perform any act, fail to perform any act, or refuse to comply with any PRTC requests that would cause the PRTC to be in violation of the FTA terms and conditions.

II.3 No Federal Government Obligations to Third Parties

The federal government shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities of any Contractor, or any other person not a party to a Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement in connection with the performance of the contract. Notwithstanding any concurrence provided by the federal government in or approval of any solicitation, sub-agreement, or third party contract, the federal government continues to have no obligations or liabilities to any party, including the third party Contractor.

II.4 Availability of Funds

It is understood and agreed that the PRTC shall be bound to this Contract only to the extent of the funds appropriated or which may hereafter become available for the purpose of this Contract. If funds are reduced or eliminated by the Commonwealth of Virginia or Federal Transit Administration, this Contract can be terminated accordingly under the provisions of this Contract.

II.5 Disallowed Costs Including Interest

The Contractor agrees to remit to the PRTC, which in turn will remit to the Federal government, any excess payments made to the Contractor disallowed by the Federal government, as well as any interest required by Subsection 9.g. of the FTA Master Agreement. PRTC will exclude any project costs incurred by the Contractor before the date of the Notice to Proceed unless otherwise authorized by PRTC in writing. PRTC will also exclude any cost not included in the approved project budget, any ordinary governmental or non-project operating cost consistent with prohibitions of 49 USC §5323(h)(1) and any cost ineligible for FTA participation as required by Federal law, regulation or guidelines for Federal participation included the cost soliciting response. Payment does not constitute a final decision about whether a cost is eligible for

reimbursement and does not constitute a waiver of any violation by the Contractor of the terms and conditions of the contract.

II.6 Default

In case of failure to deliver goods or services in accordance with the contract terms and conditions, the PRTC, after due oral or written notice, may procure them from other sources and hold the Contractor responsible for any resulting additional purchase and administrative costs. This remedy shall be in addition to any other remedies which the PRTC may have.

II.7 Termination for the Convenience of the PRTC

- 1. The parties agree that PRTC may terminate the contract or any work or delivery required thereunder, from time-to-time either in whole or in part, without cause whenever the Contract Administrator shall determine that such termination is in the best interest of PRTC.
- 2. Termination, in whole or in part, shall be effected by delivery of a Notice of Termination signed by the Contract Administrator, mailed or delivered to the contractor, and specifically setting forth the effective date of termination. Upon receipt of such Notice, the contractor shall:
 - Cease any further deliveries or work due under the contract on the date and to the extent which may be specified in the Notice;
 - Place no further orders with any subcontractors except as may be necessary to perform that portion of the contract not subject to the Notice;
 - Terminate all subcontractors except those made with respect to contract performance not subject to the Notice;
 - Settle all outstanding liabilities and claims which may arise out of such termination, with the ratification of PRTC;
 - Use its best effort to mitigate any damages, which may be sustained by him as a consequence of termination under this clause;
 - As directed by the PRTC Contract Administrator, transfer title and deliver to PRTC:
 - i. The fabricated or unfabricated parts, work in process, completed work, supplies, and other material produced or acquired for the work terminated; and
 - ii. The completed or partially completed plans, drawings, information, and other property that, if the Contract had been completed, would be required to be furnished to PRTC.
 - Complete performance of the work not terminated; and
 - Take any action that may be necessary, or that the PRTC Contract Administrator may direct, for the protection and preservation of the property related to this Contract

that is in the possession of the Contractor and in which PRTC or the Government has or may acquire an interest.

- 3. After complying with the foregoing provisions, the contractor shall submit a termination claim, in no event later than six (6) months after the effective date of its termination, unless an extension is granted by the Contract Administrator. If the Contractor fails to submit the claim within the time allowed, the PRTC Contract Administrator may determine, on the basis of information available, the amount, if any, due the Contractor because of the termination and shall pay the amount determined.
- 4. The Contract Administrator, with the approval of PRTC's signatory to the contract, shall pay reasonable costs of termination, including a reasonable amount for profit on services delivered or completed. In no event shall this amount be greater than the original contract price, reduced by any payments made prior to Notice of Termination, and further reduced by the price of the services not delivered, or those services not provided. The contract shall be amended accordingly, and the contractor shall be paid the agreed upon amount.
- 5. In the event that the parties cannot agree on the whole amount to be paid to the contractor by reason of termination under this clause, the Contract Administrator shall pay to the contractor the amounts determined as follows, without duplicating any amount which may have already been paid under the preceding paragraph of this clause:

With respect to all contract performance prior to the effective date of Notice of Termination, the total of:

- Cost of the work performed;
- The cost of settling and paying any reasonable claims as provided in subparagraph (2) above; and
- A sum as profit on paragraph (5) determined by the Contract Administrator to be fair and reasonable.

The total sum to be paid shall not exceed the contract price, as reduced by the amount of payments otherwise made, and as further reduced by the contract price of services not terminated.

- 6. In the event that the contractor is not satisfied with any payments, which the Contract Administrator shall determine to be due under this clause, the contractor may appeal any claim to PRTC in accordance with the "Contractual Claims and Disputes" clause of the contract.
- 7. Unless otherwise provided in this Contract or by statute, the Contractor shall maintain all records and documents relating to the terminated portion of this Contract for three years after final settlement. This includes all books and other evidence bearing on the Contractor's costs and expenses under this Contract. The Contractor shall make these records and documents available to the Government, at the Contractor's office, at all reasonable times, without any direct charge. If approved by the PRTC Contracting Officer or his/her designee, photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproductions may be maintained instead of original records and documents.

8. When termination for the convenience of the PRTC is a provision of this Contract, the Contractor shall include similar provisions in any subcontract, and shall specifically include requirements that subcontractors make all reasonable efforts to mitigate damages which may be suffered. Failure to include such provisions shall bar the Contractor from any recovery from the PRTC whatsoever of loss or damage sustained by a subcontractor as a consequence of termination for convenience.

II.8 Termination for Default

Either party may terminate the contract, without further obligation, for the default of the other party or its agents or employees with respect to any agreement or provision contained herein.

If, through any cause, the Contractor shall fail to fulfill in a timely and proper manner its obligations under the contract, or if the Contractor shall violate any of the covenants, agreements or stipulations of the contract, the PRTC shall thereupon have the right to terminate the contract by giving written notice to the Contractor of such termination. The written notice shall specify the effective date of termination and shall be delivered to the Contractor prior to the effective date of termination.

The Contractor shall have the right to cure its default, and thereby avoid termination, during the aforesaid notice period by remedying the circumstances which constitute the default or, where completion of such a remedy is not reasonably possible, then by taking all reasonable steps possible designed to remedy the default promptly. Successive defaults of the same nature, regardless of the Contractor efforts to cure, shall not prevent the PRTC from terminating the contract.

II.9 Termination for Non-Appropriation of Funds

If funds are not appropriated for the current or any succeeding fiscal year subsequent to the one in which the contract is entered into, for purposes of the contract, then the PRTC may terminate the contract upon prior written notice to the Contractor. Should termination be accomplished in accordance with this section, the PRTC shall be liable only for payments due through the date of termination.

II.10 Stop Work or Suspension of Work

The PRTC Contract Administrator may at any time, by written order to the Contractor, stop all, or any part, of the work called for by the contract for a period of 90 days after the order is delivered to the Contractor and for any further period to which the parties may agree.

Any such order shall be specifically identified as a Stop Work Order issued pursuant to this section.

Upon receipt of such an order, the Contractor shall forthwith comply with its terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize the incurrence of costs allocable to the work covered by the order during the period of work stoppage.

Within a period of 90 days after a Stop Work Order is delivered to the Contractor, or within any extension of that period to which the parties shall have agreed, the Contract Administrator shall either:

1. Cancel the Stop Work Order; or

2. Terminate the work covered by such order as provided in the section, "Termination for Convenience of the PRTC."

If a Stop Work Order issued under this Section is canceled or the period of the order or any extension thereof expires, the Contractor shall resume work.

An equitable adjustment shall be made in the delivery schedule or contract price, or both, and the contract shall be modified in writing accordingly, if:

1. The Stop Work Order results in an increase in the time required for completion or in the Contractor's cost properly allocable to the performance of any part of the contract; and

2. The Contractor asserts a claim for such adjustment within 30 days after the end of the period of work stoppage; provided that, if the Contract Administrator decides the facts justify such action, he may receive and act upon such claim asserted at any time prior to final payment under the contract.

If a Stop Work Order is not canceled and the work covered by such order is terminated for the convenience of PRTC, the reasonable costs resulting from the Stop Work Order will be allowed in arriving at the termination settlement.

II.11 Contractual Claims and Disputes

In accordance with Section 2.2-4363, VA Code Ann., this provision shall be followed for consideration and handling of all disputes and claims by the Contractor under this Contract. Section 2.2-4365, VA Code Ann. is not applicable to this Contract. Under no circumstances is this Section an administrative appeals procedure governed by Section 2.2-4365, VA Code Ann. because Section 2.2-4365, VA Code Ann. is not applicable to this procurement.

Notice of the intent to submit a claim setting forth the basis for any claim shall be submitted in writing within 10 days after the occurrence or the event giving rise to the claim or within 10 days of discovering the condition giving rise to the claim, whichever is later. In no event shall any claim arising out of this Contract be filed after submission of the request for Final Payment by the Contractor.

Disputes or claims by the Contractor with respect to this Contract shall be submitted in writing within five working days of the aforementioned notice for consideration by the Contract Administrator. The decision of the Contract Administrator shall be rendered in writing within 30 days from the receipt of the claim from the Contractor.

If the Contractor is not satisfied with the decision or resolution of the Contract Administrator, the Contractor may file a formal dispute with regard to the claim with the Executive Director of PRTC within 30 days of the decision of the Contract Administrator. The Executive Director of PRTC shall reduce his/her decision to writing and shall mail or otherwise furnish a copy of its decision to the Contractor within 30 days of the receipt of the claim from the Contractor. The decision of the Executive Director of PRTC shall be final and binding.

Should any decision-maker designated under this procedure fail to make a decision on a claim within the time period specified, then the claim is deemed to have been denied by the decision-maker. Pending a final determination of a claim, the Contractor shall proceed diligently with the performance of the work under this Contract.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 2.2-4363, VA Code Ann., full compliance with this disputes and claim resolution procedure set forth in this Section shall be a precondition of the filing of any lawsuit by the Contractor against the Commission arising out of the Contract.

II.12 Subcontracts

No portion of the work shall be subcontracted without prior written consent of PRTC. In the event that the Contractor desires to subcontract some part of the work specified herein, the Contractor shall furnish to PRTC the names, qualifications and experience of the proposed subcontractors. The Contractor shall, however, remain fully liable and responsible for the work to be done by his subcontractor(s) and shall assure compliance with all requirements of the contract.

The Contractor agrees to require its subcontractors and sub-subcontractors to include adequate provisions to ensure compliance with applicable Federal requirements in each subcontract and sub-subcontract. Furthermore, the Contractor agrees to include appropriate clauses in each subcontract stating the subcontractor's responsibilities under Federal law, regulation, or directive, including any necessary provisions requiring the subcontractor to extend applicable requirements to its subcontractors to the lowest tier necessary.

II.13 Prime Contractor Responsibilities

The Contractor shall be responsible for completely supervising and directing the work under the contract and all subcontractors that it may utilize, using its best skill and attention. Subcontractors who perform work under the contract shall be responsible to the prime Contractor. The Contractor agrees that it is as fully responsible for the acts and omissions of its subcontractors and of persons employed by the Contractor as it is for the acts and omissions of its own employees.

The Contractor shall submit to PRTC for approval and attachment to the contract, a list of subcontractors and their required signed certifications/contracts and contact information. During the period of performance, the Contractor shall not substitute subcontractors without the written approval of PRTC. The Contractor shall notify PRTC within five calendar days after the occurrence of any of these events and provide information as to the circumstances necessitating the proposed change, new subcontractor information and other information as requested. Proposed substitutions must have comparable qualifications and experience to those being replaced. PRTC will notify the Contractor within 10 calendar days after the receipt of all required information if this change is approved and the PRTC and the Contractor shall subsequently amend the required contract documents.

II.14 Payments to Subcontractors

In the event that the Contractor utilizes a subcontractor for any portion of the work under this Contract, the Contractor hereby agrees to:

1. The Contractor shall take one of the two following actions within seven days after receipt of amounts paid to the Contractor by PRTC for work performed by a subcontractor under the Contract.

a. Pay a subcontractor for the proportionate share of the total payment received from PRTC attributable to the work performed by that subcontractor under the Contract; or

b. Notify PRTC and any subcontractors, in writing, of its intention to withhold all or a part of the subcontractor's payment with the reason for nonpayment.

2. The Contractor shall be obligated to pay interest to a subcontractor on all monies owed by the Contractor that remain unpaid after seven days following receipt by the Contractor of payment from PRTC for work performed by a subcontractor under the Contract, except for amounts withheld under subsection 1.b. of this section. The Contractor's obligation to pay an interest charge to a subcontractor pursuant to the provisions of this section may not be construed as an obligation by PRTC. A contract modification may not be made for the purpose of providing reimbursement for any such interest charge. A cost reimbursement claim may not include any amount for reimbursement for such interest charge.

3. Unless otherwise provided under the terms of this Contract, interest shall accrue at the rate of 1% per month.

4. The Contractor is hereby required to include in each of its subcontracts a provision requiring each subcontractor to otherwise be subject to the same payment and interest requirements set forth in subsection 2 and 3 of this section with respect to each lower-tier subcontractor. Failure to pay subcontractors in an expedient manner may result in the use of the payment bond and/or termination of the contract.

II.15 Assignability of Contract

Neither this Contract, nor any part hereof, may be assigned by the Contractor to any other party without the express written permission of PRTC.

II.16 Antitrust

By entering into a contract, the Contractor conveys, sells, assigns, and transfers to the PRTC all rights, title and interest in and to all causes of the action it may now have or hereafter acquire under the antitrust laws of the United States and the Commonwealth of Virginia, relating to the particular goods or services purchased or acquired by the PRTC under said contract.

II.17 Testing/Inspection/Review of Work

The PRTC reserves the right to conduct any test/inspection it may deem advisable to assure supplies and services conform to specifications. The Contractor is responsible for performing work according to specifications in a professional, high quality standard. Authorized representatives or agents of PRTC, the Commonwealth of Virginia and/or the Federal Transit Administration may, during normal office hours, review and inspect the project activities, data, reports/studies, drawings, specifications, estimates, maps computations and financial records of the Contractor or subcontractor at their offices.

II.18 Releases, Licenses, Permits and Authorizations

It is the Contractor's responsibility to obtain all releases, licenses, permits and other usage authorizations for all matters within its ordinary sphere of activity, including photographs, copyrighted materials, artwork or any other property or rights belonging to third parties obtained by the Contractor for use in performing services for the PRTC, and shall save the PRTC harmless from all claims, demands, expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees), liabilities, suits, and proceedings (including any brought in or before any court, administrative body, arbitration panel or other tribunal) against or involving the PRTC on account of or arising out of such use. The PRTC shall obtain the same for any such items obtained by the PRTC which are used by the Contractor harmless from all claims, demands, expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees), liabilities, suits, and proceeding (including any brought in or before any court, administrative body, arbitration panel or other tribunal) against or involving the PRTC on account of or arising out of such use. The PRTC shall obtain the same for any such items obtained by the PRTC which are used by the Contractor harmless from all claims, demands, expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees), liabilities, suits, and proceeding (including any brought in or before any court, administrative body, arbitration panel or other tribunal) against or involving the PRTC on account of or arising out of any assertions, claims, slogans, headlines or the like made for any PRTC products, as well as for all claims, demands, expenses, liabilities, suits and proceedings as able set forth arising out of the nature or use of the PRTC's products.

II.19 Buy America

The Contractor agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. §5323(j), FTA's Buy America regulations at 49 CFR Part 661, and any amendments thereto, and any implementing guidance issued by FTA, with respect to the contract and any subcontracts. Buy America requirements apply to purchases greater than \$100,000.

II.20 Inspection

All supplies shall be subject to inspection and testing by PRTC, to the extent practicable at all times and places including the period of manufacture, and in any event prior to acceptance.

In case any supplies or lots of supplies are defective in material or workmanship or otherwise not in conformity with the requirements of the contract, PRTC shall have the right either to reject them (with or without instructions as to their disposition) or to require their correction.

Supplies or lots of supplies, which have been rejected or required to be corrected shall be removed or, if permitted or required by the Contract Administrator, corrected in place by and at the expense of the Contractor promptly after notice.

If the Contractor fails promptly to remove such supplies or lots of supplies which are required to be removed or promptly to replace or correct such supplies or lots of supplies, PRTC may either:

- Replace or correct such supplies and backcharge the Contractor the cost occasioned PRTC thereby; or
- Terminate the contract for default as provided in the contract.

Unless the Contractor corrects or replaces such supplies or lots of supplies within the delivery schedule, the Contract Administrator may require the delivery of such supplies or lots of supplies at a reduced price, which is equitable under the circumstances. Failure to agree to such price reductions shall be a dispute concerning a question of fact within the meaning of the clause of the contract entitled "Contractual Claims and Disputes."

If any inspection or test is made by PRTC on the premises of the Contractor or a subcontractor to the Contractor, then the respective party (of the inspection) shall provide all reasonable facilities and assistance for the safety and convenience of PRTC's inspectors in the performance of their duties without additional charge.

If PRTC's inspection(s) or test(s) are made at a point other than the premises of the Contractor or a subcontractor, it shall be at the expense of PRTC except as otherwise provided in the contract; provided, that in the case of rejection, PRTC shall not be liable for any reduction in value of samples used in connection with such inspection(s) or test(s).

All inspections and tests by PRTC shall be performed in such a manner as not to unduly delay the work.

PRTC reserves the right to charge to the Contractor any additional cost of PRTC's inspection(s) and test(s) when supplies are not ready at the time such inspection and test is requested by the Contractor, or when re-inspection or retest is necessitated by prior rejection.

Acceptance or rejection of the supplies shall be made as promptly as practicable after delivery, except as otherwise provided in the contract; but failure to inspect and accept or reject supplies shall neither relieve the Contractor from responsibility for such supplies as are not in accordance with the contract requirements nor impose liability on PRTC therefore.

The inspection(s) and test(s) by PRTC of any supplies or lots of supplies does not relieve the Contractor from any responsibility regarding defects or other failures to meet the contract requirements which may be discovered prior to acceptance. Except as otherwise provided in the contract, acceptance shall be conclusive except as regards to latent defects, fraud, or such gross mistakes or negligence as to amount to fraud.

The Contractor shall provide and maintain a Quality Assurance and Inspection system acceptable to PRTC covering the supplies hereunder.

Records of all inspection work by the Contractor shall be kept complete and available to PRTC during the performance of the contract and for such longer period as may be specified elsewhere in the contract.

II.21 Responsibility for Inspection

Notwithstanding the requirements for any PRTC inspection(s) and test(s) contained in the specifications applicable to the contract, except where specialized inspections or tests are specified for performance solely PRTC, the Contractor shall perform or have performed the inspections and tests required to substantiate that the supplies and services provided under the contract conform to the drawings, specifications and contract requirements.

II.22 Contractor's Title to Materials

No materials or supplies for the work shall be purchased by the Contractor or by any subcontractor subject to any chattel mortgage or under a conditional sales or other agreement by which an interest is retained by the seller. The Contractor warrants that he has clear title to all materials and supplies for which he invoices for payment and such title passes to PRTC upon payment of invoice.

II.23 Ownership of Material and Intellectual Properties

All materials and/or intellectual properties, and the rights thereto, which are produced in the course of the contract or which result from the work executed as the result of the contract shall be the exclusive property of the PRTC unless specific rights are expressly waived by the PRTC.

Upon completion of the services of the contract, the Contractor shall deliver all such appropriate materials including, but not limited to, camera ready artwork, computer disks, specifications, samples, photographs, video tapes, audio tapes, original artwork and drawings to the PRTC. Should the Contractor fail to deliver the materials, all expenses incurred by the PRTC in obtaining these materials shall be chargeable to the Contractor, and may be withheld for any future sums due the Contractor.

If any invention, improvement, or discovery is conceived or first actually reduced to practice in the course of or under the contract to which this clause has been added, and that invention, improvement, or discovery is patentable under the laws of the United States of America or any foreign country, the PRTC or Contractor agree to take actions necessary to provide immediate notice and a detailed report to the party at a higher tier until FTA is ultimately notified.

Unless the Federal Government later makes a contrary determination in writing, irrespective of the Contractor's status (a large business, small business, state government or state instrumentality, local government, nonprofit organization, institution of higher education, individual), the PRTC and the Contractor agree to take the necessary actions to provide, through FTA, those rights in that invention due the Federal Government as described in U.S. Department of Commerce regulations, "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts, and Cooperative Agreements," 37 C.F.R. Part 401.

The Contractor also agrees to include the requirements of this clause in each subcontract for experimental, developmental, or research work financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA.

The Contractor also understands and agrees that any technical information developed using federal funds may be subject to export control regulations under the Bureau of Export Administration of the U.S. Department of Commerce or of other Federal agencies. Any technical information regulated by U.S. export control regulations, or the direct product thereof, will not be directly or indirectly exported to any countries or foreign persons without complying with export control regulations.

II.24 Copyrights

All copyrightable works created pursuant to this agreement shall be considered work made for hire and shall belong solely and exclusively to the PRTC. If, despite the foregoing, the PRTC is not deemed the author and initial owner of any copyrightable works created pursuant to this agreement, the Contractor agrees to irrevocable assign and does hereby irrevocably assign to the PRTC the sole, exclusive and complete copyright interest in such works, and Contractor shall execute and deliver such further documents as the PRTC may reasonably request for the purpose of acknowledging, implementing or recording this assignment.

The Contractor agrees and warrants that no individual, other than regular employees of the Contractor or the PRTC working within the scope of their employment, shall participate in the

creation of any copyrightable works to be delivered under this agreement, unless such individual and his or her employer, if any, have signed an intellectual property agreement satisfactory to the PRTC before commencing such participation.

The Contractor hereby agrees that, notwithstanding anything else in this agreement, in the event of any breach of this agreement by the PRTC, the Contractor's remedy shall not include any right to rescind or otherwise revoke or invalidate the provisions of this section. Similarly, no expiration or termination of this agreement by the PRTC shall have the effect of rescinding, terminating or otherwise invalidating the provisions of this section.

II.25 Rights in Data – Intentionally Omitted

II.26 Federal Rights in Data and Copyrights – Intentionally Omitted

II.29 Fair Employment Contracting Act

The Contractor, its agents, employees, assigns or successors, and any persons, firm, or agency of whatever nature with whom it may contract or make a contract, shall comply with the provisions of the Virginia Fair Employment Contract Act, Section 2.2-4200 et seq., VA Code Ann. the terms of which are incorporated herein by reference.

II.30 Convict Labor

In connection with the performance of work under the contract, the Contractor agrees not to employ any person undergoing sentence of imprisonment except as provided by Public Law 89-176, September 10, 1985.

II.31 Conflict of Interest

The Contractor and its officers and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Virginia Conflict of Interest Act (Section 2.2-3100 et. seq., VA Code Ann.), the terms of which are incorporated herein by reference.

The PRTC is intent on avoiding conflicts of interest associated with the award of the contract. To these ends, Contractors must identify existing and prospective contractual relations they have (or could have) with organizations that could present sources of conflict as part of the bid/proposal submission. The Contractor ultimately awarded the contract must ensure that there is no real or perceived conflict of interest of the PRTC at any time during the life of the contract.

PRTC standards of conflict prohibit PRTC employees, officers, board members, or agents from participating in the selection, award, or administration of a third party contract or sub agreement supported by federal funds if a real or apparent conflict of interest would be involved. Such a conflict would arise when any of the following parties has a financial or other interest in the entity selected for award (a) an employee, officer, board member or agent (b) any member of his or her family (c) his or her partner or (d) an organization that employs or intends to employ any of the above.

PRTC standards of conflict also prohibit real or apparent organizational conflicts of interest. An

organizational conflict of interest exists when the nature of the work to be performed under a third party contract or sub agreement may, without some restriction on future activities, result in an unfair competitive advantage to the third party Contractor or sub-recipient or impair its objectivity in performing the contract work.

II.32 Immigration Reform and Contract Act of 1986

The Contractor certifies that it does not and will not during the performance of this contract violate the provisions of the Federal Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 which prohibits employment of illegal aliens. The Contractor agrees that its employment of any person without legal status may subject it to termination of this contract for default and agrees to include a similar provision in any subcontract.

II.33 Indemnification

The Contractor shall not seek to hold liable the PRTC, or any of their officers, agents and employees for any claims of any nature whatsoever arising out of the contract or arising out of the activities funded in whole or in part of the contract. The Contractor shall defend, indemnify, save, and hold harmless the PRTC, and their officers, agents, and employees against all claims and liability, including cost and expenses, due to the acts or omissions of the Contractor or the acts or omissions of the Contractor's subcontractors, agents or employees. The Contractor agrees to maintain adequate insurance in an amount and form approved by the PRTC to protect the PRTC and its officers, agents, and employees from liability arising out of the contract.

Absent the Federal Government's express written consent, the Federal Government shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities to any sub-recipient, any third party Contractor, or any other person not a party to the Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement in connection with the performance of the contract. Notwithstanding any concurrence provided by the Federal Government in or approval of any solicitation, sub agreement or third party contract, the Federal Government continues to have no obligations or liabilities to any party, including the sub-recipient and third party Contractor.

II.34 Ethics in Public Contracting

The Contractor certifies that this Contract is made without collusion or fraud and that it has not offered or received any kickbacks or inducements from any other Contractor, supplier, manufacturer or subcontractor in connection with their bid/proposal, and that they have not conferred on any public employee having official responsibility for this procurement transaction any payment, loan, subscription, advance, deposit of money, services or anything of more than nominal value, present or promised, unless consideration of substantially equal or greater value was exchanged.

II.35 Prohibition Against the Use of Federal Funds for Lobbying

The Contractor and all subcontractors agree to comply with the provisions of 31 U.S.C. § 1352, which prohibit the use of federal funds for lobbying any official or employee of any federal agency, or member or employee of Congress; and requires the recipient to disclose any lobbying of any official or employee of any federal agency, or member or employee of Congress in connection with federal assistance. In addition, no federal assistance funds shall be used for activities designed to influence Congress or State Legislature on legislation or appropriations, except through proper, official channels. The Contractor shall comply and assure the

compliance of subcontractors at any tier with U.S. DOT regulations, "New Restrictions on Lobbying," 49 C.F.R. Part 20.

For contracts of \$100,000 or more, the Contractor shall submit to the PRTC a signed "Certification of Restrictions on Lobbying," (attached) and shall require all subcontractors with contracts of \$100,000 or more to submit to the Contractor and the PRTC such signed certifications.

II.36 Officials not to Benefit

No member of or delegate to the Virginia General Assembly, and no member of the PRTC or the Virginia Department of Transportation, shall be admitted to any share or part of the contract, or to any benefit that may arise there from; but this provision shall not be construed to extend to the contract if made with a corporation for its general benefits.

No member, officer, or employee of the PRTC during his/her tenure or one year thereafter shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in the contract or the proceeds thereof.

II.37 Independent Contractor

The Contractor is and shall be in all events, an independent Contractor. Nothing herein shall be construed as constituting the Contractor as an agent, partner, employee, or legal representative of the PRTC for any purpose. Neither the Contractor nor its employees shall be entitled to or be eligible to participate in any benefits, privileges or plans given by or established for the benefit of PRTC or its employees.

II.38 Anti-Discrimination

During the performance of the contract, the Contractor agrees as follows:

1. The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, creed, sex, disability, age, religion, or national origin. The Contractor agrees to take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, creed, sex, disability, age, religion, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrade, demotion or transfer, recruitment, or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training including apprenticeship. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. The Contractor also agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.

2. The Contractor, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Contractor, will state that such Contractor is an equal opportunity employer.

3. Notices, advertisements, and solicitations placed in accordance with federal law, rule or regulation shall be deemed sufficient for the purpose of meeting the requirements of this Section.

4. The Contractor will comply with all applicable requirements of Title IX of Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, 20 U.S.C. §§1681-1683, 1685-1688, with U.S. DOT

regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in Education Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance," 49 C.F.R. Part 25, and with any implementing directives that U.S. DOT or FTA may promulgate, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of sex.

5. The Contractor will comply with applicable federal guidance issued in compliance with Executive Order Number 13166, "Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency," August 11, 2000, 42 U.S.C. §2000d-1 note, and with the requirements and provisions of U.S. DOT Notice, "DOT Guidance to Recipients on Special Language Services to Limited English Proficient (LEP) Beneficiaries," 66 Fed. Reg. 6733 *et seq.*, January 22, 2001.

6. With respect to activities deemed by the U.S. Department of Labor (U.S. DOL) to qualify as "construction," the Contractor agrees to comply, and assures the compliance of each subcontractor at any tier with all applicable EEO requirements of U.S. DOL regulations, "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor," 41 C.F.R. Parts 60 *et seq.*, (which implement Executive Order No. 11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity," as amended by Executive Order No. 11375, "Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity," 42 U.S.C. § 2000(e) note,) and any Federal statutes, executive orders, regulations, and Federal policies affecting construction undertaken as part of the Project.

7. The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable requirements of the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6101 *et seq.*, and implementing regulations, which prohibit employment and other discrimination against individuals on the basis of age.

8. The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable requirements of any other nondiscrimination statutes(s) that may apply.

9. The Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA, modified only if necessary to identify the affected parties.

II.39 Access Requirements for Individuals with Disabilities

The Contractor agrees to comply with the requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5301(d), which states the Federal policy that the elderly and persons with disabilities have the same rights as other persons to use mass transportation service and facilities, and that special efforts shall be made in planning and designing those services and facilities to implement that policy. The Contractor also agrees to comply with all applicable requirements of section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 794, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps, with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 *et seq.*, which requires that accessible facilities and services be made available to persons with disabilities, including any subsequent amendments to that Act, and with the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 4151 *et seq.*, which requires that buildings and public accommodations be accessible to persons with disabilities, including any subsequent amendments to comply with all applicable requirements of the following regulations and any subsequent amendments thereto:

- U.S. DOT regulations, "Transportation Services for Individuals with Disabilities (ADA)", 49 C.F.R. Part 37;
- U.S. DOT regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap in Programs and Activities Receiving or Benefiting from Federal Financial Assistance", 49 C.F.R. Part 27;
- U.S. DOT regulations, "Americans With Disabilities (ADA) Accessibility Specifications for Transportation Vehicles", 49 C.F.R. Part 38;
- Department of Justice (DOJ) regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability in State and Local Government Services", 28 C.F.R. Part 35;
- DOT regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability by Public Accommodations and in Commercial Facilities", 28 C.F.R. Part 36;
- General Services Administration regulations, "Construction and Alteration of Public Buildings, "Accommodations for the Physically Handicapped", 41 C.F.R. Part 101-19;
- Equal Employment Opportunity (EEOC) "Regulations to Implement the Equal Employment Provisions of the Americans With Disabilities Act", 29 C.F.R. Part 1630;
- Federal Communications regulations, "Telecommunications Relay Services and Related Customer Premises Equipment for the Hearing and Speech Disabled", 47 C.F.R. Part 64, Subpart F; and
- FTA regulations, "Transportation for Elderly and Handicapped Persons", C.F.R. Part 609.
- Architectural and Transportation Barriers Compliance Board regulations, "Electronic and Information Technology Accessibility Standards," 36 C.F.R. Part 1194; and
- Any implementing requirements FTA may issue.

Any and all materials, drawings or plans produced for the PRTC shall reflect the requirements of the codes and regulations listed above.

II.40 Drug or Alcohol Abuse - Confidentiality and Other Civil Rights Protections

The Contractor agrees to comply with confidentiality and other civil rights protections of the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972, as amended, 21 U.S.C. §§ 1174 *et seq.*, with the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation Act of 1970, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 4581 *et seq.*, and with the Public Health Service Act of 1912, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 290dd-3 and 290ee-3, and any subsequent amendments to these acts.

II.41 Drug-Free Workplace to Be Maintained by Contractor for Contracts over \$10,000

During the performance of this contract, the Contractor agrees to (i) provide a drug-free workplace for the Contractor's employees; (ii) post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, a statement notifying employees that the unlawful

manufacture, sale, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance or marijuana is prohibited in the Contractor's workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of such prohibition; (iii) state in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Contractor that the Contractor maintains a drug-free workplace; and (iv) include the provisions of the foregoing clauses in every subcontract or purchase order over \$10,000, so that the provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor.

For the purposes of this section "drug-free workplace" means a site for the performance of work done in connection with a specific contract awarded to a Contractor in accordance with this chapter, the employees of whom are prohibited from engaging in the unlawful manufacture, sale, distribution, dispensation, possession or use of any controlled substance or marijuana during the performance of the Contract.

II.42 Labor Provisions

The Contractor and any subcontractors shall maintain payrolls and basic payroll records during the course of the work and shall preserve them for a period of three (3) years from the completion of the contract for all laborers and mechanics, including guards and watchmen, working on the contract. Such records shall contain the name and address of each such employee, social security number, correct classifications, hourly rates of wages paid, daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made, and actual wages paid. The records to be maintained under this clause shall be made available by the Contractor or subcontractor for inspection, copying or transcription by authorized representatives of the FTA, the U.S. DOT, or the Department of Labor, and the Contractor or subcontractor will permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job.

The following clauses are applicable to any contract subject to the overtime provisions of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act:

1. No Contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any work week in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such work week unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such work week. Determinations pertaining to these requirements shall be made in accordance with the requirements of section 102 of the Act, 40 U.S.C. §§ 327 - 332; and U.S. DOL regulations, "Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Governing Federally Financed and Assisted Construction (also Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Nonconstruction Contracts Subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act)," 29 C.F.R. Part 5; and with section 107 of the Act, 40 U.S.C. § 333, and U.S. DOL regulations, "Safety and Health Regulations for Construction," 29 C.F.R. Part 1926.

2. In the event of any violation of the requirements of 29 C.F.R. §5.5(b)(1), the Contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefore shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such Contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of 29 C.F.R. §5.5(b)(1) in the sum of ten dollars (\$10) for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard work week of forty (40) hours

without payment of the overtime wages required by 29 C.F.R. § 5.5(b)(1).

3. The FTA or the recipient shall upon its own action or upon written request for an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the Contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other federal contract with the same prime Contractor, or any other federally assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime Contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such Contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth at 29 C.F.R. § 5.5(b)(2).

The Contractor agrees to comply, and assures to comply, and assures the compliance of each subcontractor at any tier, with the Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act, as amended, 18 U.S.C. § 874 and 40 U.S.C. § 276c, and U.S. DOL regulations, "Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work Financed in Whole or in part by Loans or Grants from the United States," 29 C.F.R. Part 3. The Contractor, in addition to other requirements that may apply, agrees that it will not induce, by any means, any person employed in the construction, completion or repair of public work, to give up any part of the compensation to which that employee is otherwise entitled. In addition, the Contractor agrees to report every suspected or reported violation of the Act or its federal implementing regulations to FTA.

Activities Not Involving Construction. The Contractor agrees to comply, and assures to comply, and assures the compliance of each subcontractor at any tier, with any applicable employee protection requirements for non-construction employees of section 102 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, as amended, 40 U.S.C. §§ 327 - 332, and U.S. DOL regulations, "Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Governing Federally Financed and Assisted Construction (also Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Nonconstruction Contracts Subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act)," 29 C.F.R. Part 5.

References to the Fair labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. §§ 201 et. Seq. is substituted for the reference to specific sections of the Act.

The Contractor agrees to comply and assures the compliance of these requirements for each subcontract at any tier.

II.43 Royalties

While PRTC recognizes that certain materials or component parts may be produced under the terms of licensing or cross licensing agreements, it must be understood that the use of such materials and component parts requiring the application of recurring royalty charges, costs or payments is specifically prohibited.

II.44 Metric System

In accordance with Section 30 of the FTA Master Agreement, the FTA reserves the right to impose specific metric requirements for the contract.

II.45 Energy Conservation

The Contractor agrees to comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency, which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act.

II.46 Environmental Regulations

The Contractor and any subcontractors are required to comply with all applicable federal environmental standards, orders or requirements issued under Section 306 of the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §7401 *et seq*, and Section 508 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. §1368, and other provisions of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. §1251 *et seq*; Environmental Protection agency regulations (40 C.F.R. Part 15); National Environmental Policy Act of 1969, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §4321 et seq; Executive Order Number 11514, as amended, "Protection and Enhancement of Environmental Quality," 42 U.S.C. §4321 note; FTA statutory requirements at 49 U.S.C. §5324(b); Council on Environmental Quality regulations pertaining to compliance with the National Environmental Quality Act of 1969, as amended, 40 C.F.R. Part 1500 et seq; the joint FHWA/FTA regulations, "Environmental Impact and Related Procedures," 23 C.F.R. Part 771 and 49 C.F.R. Part 622, and, when promulgated, FHWA/FTA joint regulations, "NEPA and Related Procedures for Transportation Decision making, Protection of Public Parks, Wildlife and waterfowl Refuges, and Historic Sites," 23 C.F.R. Part 1420 and 49 C.F.R Part 623.

As stated in the aforementioned regulations, if projects cause or result in adverse environmental effects, all reasonable measures to minimize those adverse effects must be taken. In addition, all environmental mitigation measures identified as commitments in applicable environmental documents, such as environmental assessments and documents required by 49 U.S.C. §303, must be completed. These commitments include any conditions the Federal Government imposes on a finding of no significant impact or record of decision. These mitigations measures are incorporated by reference and made part of the Grant Agreement and may not be modified or withdrawn without written approval of the Federal Government.

The Contractor agrees to include in subcontracts exceeding \$100,000, adequate provisions to ensure that Project participants report the use of facilities placed or likely to be placed on EPA's "List of Violating Facilities," refrain from using violating facilities, report violations to FTA and the Regional EPA Office. The PRTC will report and requires the Contractor and any subcontractor to report any violation of these requirements resulting from implementation of the contract by the Contractor, subcontractor (at any tier), or the PRTC to FTA and the appropriate U.S. EPA Regional Office. All plans, drawings, and other documents produced as a result of the contract should comply with these regulations when applicable.

The Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding \$100,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA.

II.47 Planning – Intentionally Omitted

II.48 Audit

The Contractor hereby agrees to maintain all books, records, accounts, and reports required under the contract for a period of not less than three (3) years after the date of termination or expiration of the contract, except in the event of litigation or settlement of claims arising from the performance of the contract, in which case the Contractor agrees to maintain same until the

PRTC, the FTA Administrator, the Comptroller General, or any their duly authorized representatives, have disposed of all such litigation, appeals, claims, or exceptions related thereto. Reference 49 CFR 18.39(i)(11). The agency, its authorized agents, Federal Government, and/or state auditors shall also have full access to and the right to examine any of said materials during said period.

II.49 False or Fraudulent Statements and Claims

The Contractor recognizes that the requirements of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, as amended, 31 U.S.C. § 3801 et. seq. and U.S. DOT regulations, "Program Fraud Civil Remedies," 49 C.F.R. Part 31 apply to its actions pertaining to the Project. Upon execution of the underlying contract, the Contractor certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of any statement it has made, it makes, it may make, or causes to be made, pertaining to the underlying contract or the FTA assisted project for which the contract work is being performed. In addition to other penalties that may be applicable, the Contractor also acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification, the Federal Government reserves the right to impose the penalties of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 on the Contractor to the extent the Federal Government deems appropriate. The Contractor also acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification to the Federal Government under a contract connected with a project which is financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance originally awarded by FTA under the authority of 49 U.S.C. § 5307, the Government reserves the right to impose the penalties of 18 U.S.C. §1001 and 49 U.S.C. § 5307(n)(1) on the Contractor, to the extent the Federal Government deems appropriate. The Contractor agrees to include the above two clauses on each subcontract financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA. It is further agreed that the clauses shall not be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to the provisions.

II.50 Support of Exclusionary of Discriminatory Specifications

Apart from inconsistent requirements by Federal statute or regulations, the PRTC complies with the requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5323(h)(2) by refraining from using any Federal assistance awarded by FTA to procurements with exclusionary or discriminatory specifications.

II.51 Authorized Funding

If at any time the Contractor has reason to believe that the costs to PRTC which will accrue in the performance of the contract in the next succeeding 30 days, when added to all other payments previously accrued, will exceed 75% of the then current total authorized funding, the Contractor shall notify the PRTC to that effect, advising the estimate of additional funds required for completion of the task order. The Contractor shall be under no obligation to perform any work hereunder, and PRTC shall not be obligated to reimburse Contractor for any work performed, if in the performance thereof the total funding then allotted to contract will be exceeded.

PRTC shall not be obligated to pay the Contractor any amount in excess of the ceiling price reflected in the contract, and the Contractor shall not be obligated to continue performance if to do so would exceed the price set forth in the contract, unless and until the PRTC Executive Director shall have notified the Contractor in writing that the price has been increased and shall have specified in the notice a revised price that shall constitute the price for performance under the contract, and the contract has been duly modified. When and to the extent that the price set

forth in the contract has been increased, any hours expended and material costs incurred by the Contractor in excess of the price before the increase shall be allowable to the same extent as if the hours expended and material costs had been incurred after the increase in the price.

II.52 Taxes

Deliveries against the contract shall be free of federal excise and transportation taxes as well as sales tax to the extent permitted by law. The PRTC excise tax exemption registration number shall be furnished upon request. PRTC is exempt from the payment of any Federal excise tax and Virginia sales tax. However, when under established trade practice, any Federal excise tax is included in the list price, the Offeror may quote the list price and shall show separately the amount of Federal tax, as a flat sum, which shall be deducted by PRTC.

II.53 Extra Charges Not Allowed

The negotiated price shall be for the complete installation ready for PRTC use, and shall include all applicable freight and installation charges; extra charges will not be allowed.

II.54 Modifications or Changes to the Contract

The Executive Director of the Potomac and Rappahannock Transportation Commission shall, without notice to any sureties, have the authority to order changes in this Contract which affect the cost or time of performance. Such changes shall be ordered in writing specifically designated to be a "Change Order." Such orders shall be limited to reasonable changes in the services to be performed or the time of performance; provided that the Contractor shall not be excused from performance under the changed contract by failure to agree to such changes, and it is the express purpose of this provision to permit unilateral changes in the Contract subject to the conditions and limitations herein. Changes may also be made by mutual agreement between the parties in writing. The Contractor shall promptly comply with the notice and shall perform all services in conformity to the notice.

The Contractor need not perform any work described in any change order unless it has received a certification from PRTC that there are funds budgeted and appropriated sufficient to cover the cost of such changes.

If any such changes causes an increase or decrease in the Contractor's cost of performance or the time required for performance, an equitable adjustment in the contract price and/or the time allowed for performance of the contract shall be negotiated and the contract modified accordingly. Any claim by the Contractor for adjustment under this clause must be asserted by written notice to PRTC within 30 days from the date of receipt by the Contractor of the change notice. If the parties fail to agree to an adjustment, the question of an increase or decrease in the contract price or time allowed for performance shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures for resolving disputes provided by the "Contractual Claims and Disputes" clause of the contract, or if there is none, in accordance with the disputes provision of the Commonwealth of Virginia's Vendor's Manual. Neither the existence of a claim, a dispute, submission of the dispute or the dispute resolution process, litigation or any portion of this provision or changes shall excuse the Contractor from promptly proceeding with performance of the contract as changed by the notice.

No claim for changes ordered hereunder shall be considered if made after final payment in accordance with the Contract.

II.55 Examination of Records

The Contractor agrees as follows:

<u>1. Reports</u>. The Contractor agrees to provide to PRTC those reports required by the U.S. DOT's grant management rules and any other reports the federal government may require.

2. Record Retention. The Contractor agrees to provide the PRTC, the FTA Administrator, the Comptroller General of the United States or any authorized representatives access to any books, documents, paper and records of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to the contract for the purpose of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions even after the project has been closed-out. The Contractor also agrees, pursuant to 49 C.F.R. 633.17 to provide the FTA Administrator or his authorized representatives including any PMO Contractor access to the Contractor's records and construction sites pertaining to a major capital project, defined at 49 U.S.C. 5302(a)1, which is receiving federal financial assistance through the programs described at 49 U.S.C. 5307, 5309, or 5311.

The Contractor agrees that it will maintain intact and readily accessible all data, books, accounts, documents, reports, records, contracts, and supporting materials relating to the contract as the federal government and Commonwealth of Virginia governments may require during the course of the contract and for three (3) years thereafter, except in the event of litigation of settlement of claims arising from the performance of the contract, in which case the Contractor agrees to maintain the same until the Purchaser, the FTA Administrator, the Comptroller General, or any of their duly authorized representatives have disposed of all such litigation appeals claims or exceptions related thereto.

<u>3. Access to Records</u>. Upon request, the Contractor agrees to permit PRTC, its authorized agents, state auditors, the Secretary of Transportation, and the Comptroller General of the United States, or their authorized representatives, to inspect all project work, materials, payrolls, and other data, and to audit the books, records, and accounts pertaining to the project.

The Contractor further agrees to include in all his subcontracts hereunder a provision to the effect that the subcontractor agrees that PRTC, its authorized agents, state auditors, the Secretary of Transportation, and the Comptroller of the United States, or their authorized representatives, until the expiration of five years after final payment under the subcontract, be permitted to inspect and audit all data and records of the subcontractor relating to his performance under the subcontract.

The term "subcontract" as used in this clause excludes (1) purchase orders not exceeding \$100,000 and (2) subcontracts or purchase orders for public utility services at rates established for uniform applicability to the general public.

PRTC shall continue to have a period beyond five years after final payment under the contract to inspect and audit all data and records which relate to:

- Appeals under the "Claims/Disputes" clause of the contract;
- Litigation of claims arising out of the performance of the contract; or

• Costs and expenses of the contract as to which exception has been taken by PRTC or the Commonwealth of Virginia or any of its duly authorized representatives.

The extended right of inspection shall continue for such period beyond five years after final payment under the contract until such appeals, litigations, claims or exceptions have been disposed of, and for such period thereafter as required for review by the Virginia Department of Transportation and PRTC.

<u>4. Notification of Federal Participation</u>. In the announcement of any contract award for goods or services (including construction services) having an aggregate value of \$500,000 or more, the Contractor agrees to specify the amount of Federal assistance to be used in financing that acquisition of goods and services and to express the amount of that Federal assistance as a percentage of the total cost of that third party contract.

II.56 Geographic Restrictions

The Contractor agrees to refrain from using state or local geographic preferences, except those expressly mandated or encouraged by federal statute, and as permitted by FTA, such as for professional services in areas where such a restriction does not unduly limit competition.

II.57 Employment of Personnel

The Contractor shall not employ any persons or persons in the employment of PRTC for any work required by the terms of the contract, without written permission of the PRTC.

II.58 Publications

Articles, papers, bulletins, reports or other material reporting the results and findings of the work conducted under the Contract shall not be presented publicly or published without prior approval in writing of the PRTC and all materials remain the sole property of PRTC.

Publications and reports officially released after the date of execution of then contract describing the results of any investigation or study hereunder participated in by PRTC shall give recognition to the PRTC in the text and title page to the nature of its cooperative character.

II.59 Electronic and Information Technology

To the extent required by law, the Contractor agrees that any electronic and information technology financed with Federal assistance awarded for the contract will meet the applicable accessibility standards of Section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, by 29 U.S.C. § 794d, and U.S. ATBCB regulations, "Electronic and Information Technology Accessibility Standards," 36 C.F.R. Part 1194.

II.60 Use of Real Property, Equipment, and Supplies

The Contractor understands and agrees that the Federal Government retains a Federal interest in any real property, equipment, and supplies financed with Federal assistance until, and to the extent, that the Federal Government relinquishes its Federal interest that property. Unless otherwise approved by FTA, the Contractor agrees to comply with the following requirements with respect to real property, equipment, and supplies financed by the Contract: a. <u>Use of Property</u>. The Contractor agrees to use Contract real property, equipment, and supplies for appropriate Contract purposes (which may include joint development purposes that generate program income, both during and after the award period used to support transit activities) for the duration of the useful life of that property, as required by PRTC. Should the Contractor unreasonably delay or fail to use Contract property during the useful life of that property, the Contractor agrees that it may be required to return the entire amount of the Federal assistance expended on that property. The Contractor further agrees to notify PRTC immediately when any Contract property is withdrawn from Contract use or when Contract property is used in a manner substantially different from the representations the Contractor has made in its bid/proposal for the Contract.

b. <u>General Federal Requirements</u>. A Contractor that is an institution of higher education, or a private nonprofit organization, agrees to comply with 49 C.F.R. §§ 19.30 through 19.37, including any amendments thereto, and other applicable guidelines or regulations the Federal Government may issue. Any exception to the requirements of 49 C.F.R. §§ 18.31 through 18.34, and to 49 C.F.R. §§ 19.30 through 19.37, requires the express approval of the PRTC. A Contractor that is a for-profit organization agrees to comply with property management standards satisfactory to PRTC. In addition, the Contractor consents to FTA's established reimbursement requirements for premature dispositions of certain Contract equipment (*i.e.*, when Contract equipment is withdrawn from appropriate use before the expiration of the equipment's useful life established by FTA), as explained in this section.

c. <u>Maintenance</u>. The Contractor agrees to maintain Contract real property and equipment in good operating order, in compliance with any guidelines, directives, or regulations FTA may issue.

d. <u>Records</u>. The Contractor agrees to keep satisfactory records regarding the use of Contract real property, equipment, and supplies, and submit to the PRTC upon request such information as may be required to assure compliance with this section of the contract.

e. <u>Encumbrance of Contract Property</u>. The Contractor agrees to maintain satisfactory continuing control of Contract real property or equipment. Thus, absent written authorization by PRTC permitting otherwise:

1. <u>Written Transactions</u>. The Contractor agrees to refrain from executing any transfer of title, lease, lien, pledge, mortgage, encumbrance, third party contract, grant anticipation note, alienation, or any other obligation that in any way would affect the Federal interest in any Contract real property or equipment.

2. <u>Oral Transactions</u>. The Contractor agrees to refrain from obligating itself in any manner to any third party with respect to Contract real property or equipment.

3. <u>Other Actions</u>. The Contractor agrees to refrain from taking any action that would either adversely affect the Federal interest or impair the Contractor's continuing control of the use of Contract real property or equipment.

f. <u>Transfer of Contract Property</u>. The Contractor understands and agrees as follows:

1. <u>Contractor Request</u>. The Contractor may transfer assets financed with Federal assistance authorized for 49 U.S.C. Chapter 53 to a public body to be used for any

public purpose with no further obligation to the Federal Government, provided the transfer is approved by PRTC and Federal Transit Administrator and conforms with the requirements of 49 U.S.C. §§ 5334(g)(1) and (2).

2. <u>Federal Government Direction</u>. The Contractor agrees that the Federal Government may direct the disposition of, and even require the Contractor to transfer title to, any real property, equipment, or supplies financed with Federal assistance under the contract.

3. Leasing Contract Property to Another Party. If the Contractor leases any Contract asset to another party with PRTC's written permission, the Contractor agrees to retain ownership of the leased asset, and assure that the lessee will use the Contract asset appropriately, either through a "Lease and Supervisory Agreement" between the Contractor and lessee, or another similar document, unless the PRTC determines otherwise in writing. Upon request by PRTC, the Contractor agrees to provide a copy of any relevant documents.

g. <u>Disposition of Contract Property</u>. With prior PRTC approval, the Contractor may sell, transfer, or lease Contract property and use the proceeds to reduce the gross project cost of other eligible capital transit projects to the extent permitted by 49 U.S.C. § 5334(g)(4). Nevertheless, the Contractor agrees that PRTC may establish the useful life of Contract property, and that the Contractor will use Contract property continuously and appropriately throughout that useful life.

1. <u>Contract Property Whose Useful Life Has Expired</u>. When the useful life of Contract property has expired, the Contractor agrees to comply with PRTC's disposition requirements.

2. <u>Contract Property Prematurely Withdrawn from Use</u>. For property withdrawn from appropriate use before its useful life has expired, the Contractor agrees as follows:

(a) <u>Notification Requirement</u>. The Contractor agrees to notify PRTC immediately when any Contract real property, equipment, or supplies are prematurely withdrawn from appropriate use, whether by planned withdrawal, misuse, or casualty loss.

(b) <u>Calculating the Fair Market Value of Prematurely Withdrawn Contract</u> <u>Property</u>. The Contractor agrees that the Federal Government retains a Federal interest in the fair market value of contract property prematurely withdrawn from mass transportation use. The amount of the Federal interest in the property shall be determined on the basis of the ratio of the Federal assistance awarded by the Federal Government for the property to the actual cost of the property. The Contractor agrees that the fair market value of property prematurely withdrawn from use shall be calculated as follows:

(1) Equipment and Supplies. Unless otherwise determined in writing by PRTC, the Contractor agrees that fair market value shall be calculated by straight-line depreciation of the equipment or supplies, based on the useful life of the equipment or supplies established or approved by FTA. In addition, the fair market value of equipment and supplies shall be the value immediately before the occurrence prompting the withdrawal of that property from use. In the case of equipment or supplies lost or damaged by fire, casualty, or natural disaster, the fair market value shall be calculated on the basis of the condition of that property immediately before the fire, casualty, or natural disaster, irrespective of the extent of insurance coverage. The Contractor may use its own disposition procedures, provided that those procedures comply with the State's laws.

(2) <u>Real Property</u>. The Contractor agrees that the fair market value of real property shall be determined either by competent appraisal based on an appropriate date approved by the Federal Government, as provided by 49 C.F.R. Part 24, or by straight line depreciation, whichever is greater.

(3) <u>Exceptional Circumstances</u>. The Contractor agrees that the PRTC may require the use of another method of determining the fair market value of property. In unusual circumstances, the Contractor may request that another reasonable valuation method be used including, but not limited to, accelerated depreciation, comparable sales, or established market values. In determining whether to approve such a request, the PRTC may consider any action taken, omission made, or unfortunate occurrence suffered by the Contractor with respect to the preservation or conservation of Contract property withdrawn from appropriate use.

(c) <u>Obligations to the PRTC</u>. Unless otherwise approved in writing by the PRTC, the Contractor agrees to remit to the PRTC the Federal interest in the fair market value of Contract real property, equipment, or supplies prematurely withdrawn from appropriate use. In the case of fire, casualty, or natural disaster, the Contractor may fulfill its responsibilities with respect to the Federal interest remaining in the damaged equipment or supplies by either:

(1) Investing an amount equal to the remaining Federal interest in like-kind equipment or supplies that are eligible for assistance within the scope of the Contract that provided financial assistance for the damaged equipment or supplies; or

(2) Returning to the PRTC an amount equal to the remaining Federal interest in the damaged property.

h. <u>Insurance Proceeds</u>. If the contract receives insurance proceeds as a result of damage or destruction to the Contract property, the Contractor agrees to:

1. Apply those insurance proceeds to the cost of replacing the damaged or destroyed Contract property taken out of service, or

2. Return to the PRTC an amount equal to the remaining Federal interest in the damaged or destroyed property.

i. <u>Transportation - Hazardous Materials</u>. The requirements of U.S. Research and Special Programs Administration regulations, "Shippers - General Requirements for Shipments and Packagings," 49 C.F.R. Part 173, apply to the transportation of hazardous materials.

j. <u>Misused or Damaged Project Property</u>. If any damage to Contract real property, equipment, or supplies results from abuse or misuse of that property occurring with the Contractor's knowledge and consent, the Contractor agrees to restore that real property or equipment to its original condition or refund the value of the Federal interest in the damaged property, as the Federal Government may require.

II.61 Protection of Sensitive Security Information

To the extent applicable, the Contractor is to comply with Section 101(e) of the Aviation and Transportation Security Act, 49 U.S.C. §4019(b), with U.S. Transportation Security Administration regulations, "Protection of Sensitive Security Information," 49 C.F.R. Part 1520,

and with any implementing regulations, requirements, or guidelines that the Federal Government may issue.

II.62 Employment Discrimination for Contracts Over \$10,000

1. During the performance of this Contract, the Contractor agrees as follows:

a. The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, sex, national origin, age, disability, or any other basis prohibited by state law relating to discrimination in employment, except where there is a bona fide occupational qualification reasonably necessary to the normal operation of the Contractor. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment notices setting forth the provision of this nondiscrimination clause.

b. The Contractor, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Contractor, will state that such Contractor is an equal opportunity employer.

c. Notices, advertisements, and solicitations placed in accordance with Federal law, rule, or regulation shall be deemed sufficient for the purpose of meeting the requirements of this section.

2. The Contractor will include the provisions of the foregoing paragraphs a, b, and c in ever subcontract or purchase order over \$10,000, so that the provisions shall be binding upon each subcontractor or Contractor.

II.63 Liability for Loss or Damage

The Contractor shall be liable for any loss of, or damage to, PRTC property caused by the negligence, wanton or willful misconduct of the Contractor, his agents, servants and employees, and shall indemnify and save PRTC harmless against all actions, proceedings, claims, demands, costs, damages and expenses, including attorney's fees, by reason of any suit or action brought for any actual or alleged injury to, or death of, any person, or damage to property other than PRTC property, resulting from the performance of the Contract. The Contractor shall submit to the PRTC Executive Director within 24 hours following the occurrence of such damage, loss or injury, a full written report.

II.64 Ethics in Public Contracting

The Contractor hereby certifies that it has familiarized itself with Article 6 of Title 2.2 of the Virginia Public Procurement Act, Sections 2.2-4367 through 2.2-4377, Va. Code Ann., and that all amounts received by it, pursuant to this Procurement, are proper and in accordance therewith.

II.65 Integration

This Contract shall constitute the whole agreement between the parties. There are no promises, terms, conditions or obligations other than those contained herein, and this Contract shall supersede all previous communications, representations or agreements, written or verbal, between the parties hereto.

II.66 Warranty – Intentionally Omitted

II.67 Force Majeure

If either party to this Contract is rendered unable, wholly or in part, to carry out its obligations under this Contract in a timely manner by reason of some cause beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the party that amounts to Force Majeure, such party shall give to the other party prompt written notice thereof with reasonably full particulars, and if undisputed, the obligation of the party giving notice to perform its obligations shall be suspended during, but no longer than, the continuance of the Force Majeure, and such party shall act diligently to remove the Force Majeure as soon as practical and to reschedule the work or take such other action as is reasonable necessary to mitigate any delay.

For the purposes of this section, Force Majeure shall mean:

- (a) An act of war, whether or not declared, civil war, insurrection, riot, acts of terrorism, or any condition incident to the foregoing.
- (b) Acts of the Federal or State government or the entry of a court order, intended to, or having the effect of stopping or delaying the work.
- (c) An Act of God which for the purposes of this section shall mean an earthquake, flood, cyclone, or other cataclysmic phenomenon of nature beyond the power of the party to foresee or make preparation in defense of. The performance of the work shall not be adjusted for normal inclement weather.

II.68 Emergency Order

In the event of any emergency, PRTC reserves the right to order the contracted services from other sources, which could provide a faster delivery time.

II.69 Non-Discrimination against Faith-Based Organizations

PRTC does not discriminate against faith-based organizations in procuring supplies and services.

II.70 Preference for Recycled Products

To the extent practicable and economically feasible, the Contractor agrees to provide a competitive preference for recycled products to be used in the project pursuant to U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA) guidelines at 40 CFR 247-253, which implements Section 6002 of the Resource Conservation and Recovery act, as amended 42 USC 6962.

II.71 Hold Harmless

In addition to the terms and provisions contained in Sections II.26(c) and II.33, the Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless PRTC, its officers, agents and all employees and volunteers, from any and all claims for property damage, bodily injuries and personal injuries to the public, including cost of investigation, all reasonable attorneys fees, and the cost of appeals arising out of any such claims or suits, because of any and all acts of omission or commission of the Contractor, including its agents, subcontractors, employees and volunteers, in connection with work under this Contract.

II.72 Acquisition of Management, Architectural, and Engineering Services

In acquiring management, architectural, and engineering services, the Contractor agrees to comply with the requirements of 49 U.S.C. Section 5325(b), either by negotiating for those services in the same manner as a contract for architectural and engineering services is negotiated under Title IX of the Federal Property and Administrative Services Act of 1949, as amended, 40 U.S.C. §§ 541 *et seq.*, or by using an equivalent qualifications-based requirement of the State. Provided that a sufficient number of qualified firms are eligible to compete for the subcontract, the Contractor's geographic location may be a selection criterion. In addition, when awarding contracts for architectural, engineering, or related services, the Contractor agrees to accept undisputed audits conducted by other governmental agencies, in accordance with 23 U.S.C. § 112(b)(2) (C) through (F). To the extent the Contractor qualifies for an exception in accordance with 49 U.S.C. § 5325(b), however, this Subsection 15.i of this clause does not apply.

- II.73 Fly America Intentionally Omitted
- II.74 Performance Bond and Payment Bond Intentionally Omitted
- II.75 Special Requirements for Clean Fuels Formula Projects Intentionally Omitted
- **II.76** Davis Bacon Act Intentionally Omitted

II.77 Cargo Preference Use of United States Flag Vessels – Intentionally Omitted

II.78 Seismic Safety

The contractor agrees to apply the requirements of U.S. DOT regulations applicable to seismic safety requirements for U.S. DOT assisted construction projects at 49 CFR Part 41, (specifically 49 CFR §41.117), and any implementing guidance FTA may issue, to the acquisition of any new building and to additions to any existing building.

~~~~~~~~~~~						
POTOMAC AND RAPPAHANNOCK TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION	CONTRACTOR:					
Executive Director - Contracting Officer	Contractor Representative					
Date	Title					
	Date					
ATTEST:						
Executive Assistant	Date					
APPROVED AS TO FORM COUNTY AT	ITORNEY'S OFFICE					
Attorney's Signature	Date					



